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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 26" Annual General Meeting of VITP Private Limited will be held on
Friday, 22 September 2023 at 03:00 P.M IST at the registered office of Company at Capella Block,
5 Floor, Plot No.17, Software units Layout, Madhapur, Hyderabad — 81 to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Adoption of Financial Statements

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the company for the financial
year ended 31 March 2023 together with the report of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
VITP Private Limited

~ {\ i
to 5\ )CO L’g’:
A\ Kotilingam Koppu

Place: Hyderabad | }® 1) Company Secretary
Date: 14 August 2023 /v /] (A-17903)

VITP Private Limited

International Tech Park Hyderabad, 5 Floor, Capella
Plot 17, Software Units Layout

Madhapur

Hyderabad 500 081. Telengana. India

CIN: U72200TG1997PTC026801

Tel (91) 40 6628 5000
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NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE, ON A POLL, THEREAT INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE
PROXY NEED NOT BEA MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

2. AN INSTRUMENT OF PROXY TO BE EFFECTIVE SHALL BE LODGED AT THE REGISTERED
OFFICEOF THE COMPANY AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE
MEETING.

3. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding Fifty (50) and holding in the
aggregate not more than 10% of the total paid-up share capital of the Company. In case a proxy is
proposed to be appointed by a Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the

Company carrying voting rights,then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
member.

Fof and on behalf of the Board of Directors
VITP Private Limited

i <
Py Vpton
//\Z \\ A(};\\ N /;’
,(_;-_-?_u % Kotilingam Koppu
Place: Hyderabad = Company Secretary
Date: 14 August 2023 \\ * &/ (A-17903)
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BO 'S REPORT
TO,
THE MEMBERS,
VITP PRIVATE LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 26" Annual Report together with the Audited
Balance Sheet as on 31 March 2023 along with the reports of Auditors and Directors thereon.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

The financial results for the year ended 31 March 2023 and the corresponding figures for the
last year are as under:-

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Rs. In Rs. In
Millions Millions
Revenue from Operations 2,231.14 2,108.26
Finance & Other Income 124371 1,201.65

Profit/ Loss before Depreciation, Finance
Costs, Exceptional Items and Tax Expense 2,956.18 2,851.36

Less: Depreciation/ Amortisation/ Impairment 601.49 _ 478.94
Profitt Loss before Finance Costs,

Exceptional Items and Tax Expense 290418 e
| Less: Finance Costs 1,632.13 1,669.78
Profit/ Loss before Exceptional Items and 729 56 702.64
Tax Expense
Add/ Less: Exceptional Items
Profit/ Loss before Tax Expense 722.56 702.64
Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) 256,51 233.07
Profit/ Loss for the year (1) 466.05 469.57
Other Comprehensive Income/ Loss (2) -0.00 0.05
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the
year (1+2) 466.05 469.62
Add: Balance of Profit/(Loss) for earlier years 2.624.72 221758

brought forward (Retained Earnings)

Less: Transfer from / (to) Debenture
Redemption Reserve (64.86) (62.48)

Less: Transfer to Reserves ] - -
Less: Dividend paid on Equity Shares - -
Less: Dividend paid on Preference Shares - -
Less: Dividend Distribution Tax - -

Balance of Retained Earnings carried
Forward at the end of the reporting period

3,025.91 2,624.72
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The Company was successful in taking proactive measures and marketing the space to
newclients in order to maintain healthy occupancy levels.

As reported above, the total revenue during the financial year ended on March 31, 2023,
stood at Rs. 2231.14 million as compared to Rs. 2108.26 million during the previous year.

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY’S WORKING DURING THE YEAR/ STATE
OFCOMPANY’S AFFAIR

The company is primarily engaged in the business of developing, operating and
maintainingIndustrial Parks and incidental and associated activities. The company derives
revenue through the lease of the developed area to enterprises engaged in information
technology and information technology enabled services in Hyderabad and Pune.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the
financialyear ended 31 March 2023.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under Review, the paid-up share capital of the Company as on 31 March
2023 is Rs.105,89,82,400. The Company has not issued any equity shares nor granted
anyStock Options or Sweat Equity shares.

NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (NCDs)

During FY 2022-2023, the Company has issued 25,00,000 redeemable, unsecured, and
non-convertible debentures of Rs.100/-(RupeesHundred Only) each, aggregating to INR
25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Five Crores) on 26 April 2022 to Ascendas Property Fund
(FDI) Pte Ltd for 10 years.

The Company had also issued 10,00,000 (Ten Lakhs) Unsecured, Unlisted, Non-
Convertible Debentures (‘NCDs’) of INR 100/- (Rupees Hundred only) each, at par
aggregating to INR 10,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crores only) on a private placement
basis, on 21 January 2021 to Ascendas Property Fund (FDI) Pte Ltd for 10 years.

However, during FY22/23, the aforesaid NCDs were redeemed and the company repaid
outstanding non-convertible debentures along with interest.

The Company has issued redeemable, unsecured and non-convertible debentures
(NCDs) of Rs. 1,000,000 each in two tranches, with the first tranche constituting of 2,368
NCDs on January 27, 2017, the second tranche constituting of 165 NCDs on February 10,
2017 aggregating to 2,533 NCD's of Rs. 2,533 million which carry an interest rate of
14.25% (from July 01, 2023 interest rate at 16% p.a.). As per the terms of agreement
interest for the period April 01, 2018 to March 31, 2022 shall be payable within a period of
2 years and 11 months from the date of accrual. Subsequently the interest shall be payable
within May 30th of the subsequent financial year. During the financial year 2021-22
interest payment terms were amended and interest payable upto March 2023 will be-due.
for payment on September 15, 2023 or any other mutually agreed date be;tyi:é@j‘:ifh‘;g{,;\
Company and the Debenture Holder. All the subsequent interest payment shall .lj;ec?n "pay'T;_.)
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when able" basis.

The term of each debenture shall be thirty years from the date of issue, however the
Company has an option to redeem the debentures in part or full, at any time after the third
anniversary but before expiry of the term of thirty years. At the time of redemption of the

debentures, the Company may, at its sole discretion, choose to redeem the debentures
with a premium as shall be fixed at that time.

During FY 2020-2021, the Company had issued 3,30,00,000 (Three Crore Thirty Lakhs)
Listed, Redeemable, Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of Rs. 100/-
(RupeesHundred Only) each, aggregating to INR 3,30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three Hundred
and ThirtyCrores Only) for 10 years. During FY 21/22 interest payment terms were
amended and interest payable upto 31 March 2023 will be due for payment on 15
September 2023 or any other mutually agreed dated between the Company and
Debenture holder. All the subsequent payment shall be “on pay when able” basis.

However, the company has repaid the interest amount till 31 March 2023 on 4 May 2023.

The Company has appointed M/s. IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited as Debenture trustee
in respect of the above-listed debentures.

Redemption:

The Company redeemed 2,368 and 165 NCDs on 27 June 2023 and repaid outstanding
non-convertible debentures along with interest.

LISTING

Some of your company’s Non-Convertible Debentures are listed on BSE Limited. The
Listing fees to the Stock Exchanges for the year 2023-2024 have been paid.

The Company has not received any grievances from the investors.

The company redeemed 2,368 and 165 NCDs on 27 June 27 June 2023. At present,
2 368 and 165 NCDs have been redeemed and is delisted.

DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits
falling under the purview of Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

DIVIDEND

vYour Directors have not recommended any dividend for Financial Year 2022-2023.

RESERVES

No amount was transferred to reserves during the financial year ended 31 March 2023.

MEETINGS

The meetings of the Board are scheduled at regular intervals to decide and discuss on
business performance, policies, strategies and other matters of significance. The.—~—=
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schedule for the meetings was circulated in advance, to ensure proper planning and

effective participation in meetings. In certain exigencies, decisions of the Board were
also accorded through circulation.

The details of Board Meetings convened during FY 2022-2023 are tabulated below:-

No. of Meetings held Date of the Meetings
Meetings _
Board Meetings 6 13 April 2022, 21 April 2022, 19 May!
2022, 21 July 2022,
11 August 2022,07 November 2022
.13 February 2023 & 31 March
2023.
Extra-Ordinary 2 14 April 2022 & 31 March 2023
General Meeting
Annual General 1 22 July 2022
Meeting
Name of the Directors
gj ©
o™ o™
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Mr. Sanjeev Dasgupta Y Y Y Y Y Y Y AB
Mr. Ying Soon Cheah Y Y Y ¥ Y Y Y AB
Mr. Nagabhushanam Gauri AB |AB| Y AB Y ¥ Y Y
Shankar
Mr. Rohith Bhandary NA | NA| NA NA NA NA Y
Mr. Venkata Madana Gopal NA | NA | NA NA NA NA NA NA
Divvela
Ms. Srilatha Cherukuri NA | NA| NA NA NA NA NA | NA

o NA — Not Applicable

The frequency of the Board Meetings was in accordance with the requirement under
Companies Act, 2013.

Independent Directors were appointed on 31 March 2023.

11. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Board consists of total 6 directors, of which 2 are independent and 4 are non-
executive, .At present,the Directors and Key ManagerialPersonnel of your Company

are:
NAME OF DIRECTOR/ KMP CATEGORY |
Mr. Sanjeev Dasgupta Chairman & Non-Executive Director
Mr. Ying Soon Cheah Non-Executive Director

| Mr. Nagabhushanam Gauri Shankar | Non-Executive Director

\K
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Mr. Rohith Bhandary Non-Executive Director (w.e.f. 30 March
2023)

Mr. Venkata Madana Gopal Divvela Independent Director (w.e.f. 31 March 2023)

Ms. Srilatha Cherukuri Women Independent Director (w.e.f. 31
March 2023)

Mr. Kotilingam Koppu Company Secretary

Appointment & Regularization: -

During the year under review, your Board appointed :-
> Mr Nagabhushanam Gauri Shankar as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f.
1 April 2022 and his appointment was regularized as Director effective from 14 April
2022.
» MrYing Soon Cheah as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 24 November 2021

and his appointment was regularized as Director effective from 14 April 2022.

Y

Mr Rohith Bhandary as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 30 March 2023 and
his appointment was regularized as Director effective from 31 March 2023.

» Mr Venkata Madana Gopal Divvela as an Additional Independent Director of the
Company on 31 March 2023. and his appointment was regularized as Director in the
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 31 March 2023.

Y}y

Ms. Srilatha Cherukuri as an Independent Director of the Company on 31 March 2023
and her appointment was regularized as Director in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting
held on 31 March 2023.

12. BOARD EVALUATION

The Independent Directors were appointed on 31 March 2023. So the evaluation was
not required to be carried for FY2022/2023.

13.  CREDIT RATING

During the year under review, ICRA-the rating agency reaffirmed the company
rating to BBB (stable) as under:

Instrument Type Amount Rating
Outstanding
(Rs. in Crores)
NCD Long term 2538 ICRA BBB
(Stable
NCD Long term 330 ICRA BBB
(Stable)

14. MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY:

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of-the.

QN & 50
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Company occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements
relate on the date of this report.

However, during FY 2022-2023, the Company has issued 25,00,000 redeemable,
unsecured, and non-convertible debentures of Rs.100/-(RupeesHundred Only) each,
aggregating to INR 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Five Crores) on 26 April 2022 to
Ascendas Property Fund (FDI) Pte Ltd for 10 years.

The Company had also issued 10,00,000 (Ten Lakhs) Unsecured, Unlisted, Non-
Convertible Debentures (‘NCDs’) of INR 100/~ (Rupees Hundred only) each, at par
aggregating to INR 10,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crores only) on a private placement
basis, on 21 January 2021 to Ascendas Property Fund (FDI) Pte Ltd for 10 years.

However, during FY22/23, the aforesaid NCDs were redeemed and the company repaid
outstanding non-convertible debentures along with interest.

The Company redeemed 2,368 and 165 Listed NCDs on 27 June 2023 and repaid
outstanding non-convertible debentures along with interest.

The Company has also issued 2,61,43,377 unsecured and redeemable offshore rupee
denominated bonds of face value of Rs. 100 (Rupees one hundred only) each aggregating
for an amount of Rs.261,43,37,700/- on 29 May 2023.

WEB ADDRESS IF ANY, WHERE ANNUAL RETURN REFERRED TO IN SUB
SECTION (3) OF SECTION 92 PLACED

The web address where Annual Return as referred to in Section 92(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013 would be available after filling the same with Registrar of Companies is
https://ir.a-itrust.com/vitp.html.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In accordance with the clause (c ) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Directors of your Company hereby state that:-

- in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures

= such accounting policies were selected and applied them consistently and made
judgmentsand estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of
the profit and loss ofthe company for that period,;

proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
recordsin accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of
the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

- the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.
- The internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively

- proper systems were devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

ANELE g5
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applicablelaws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE:

The Company has formed a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as per Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules made there under. The details of
CSR spending are enclosed in CSR Annexure [ Annexure A. The CSR policy has been
uploaded in the Company’s website with the following link https://ir.a-itrust.com/vitp.html

Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder
(including statutory modifications or re-enactment(s) or amendments in the applicable rules

thereof for the time being in force as on date of this Report), the Members of the CSR
Committee

at present

1 Mr. Sanjeev Dasgupta, Committee Chairman

2. Mr. Ying Soon Cheah, Committee Member (w.e.f. 17 February 2022)
3. Ms. Srilatha Cherukuri, Committee Member (w.e.f. 31 March 2023)

Note:

1. Mr Vinamra Srivastava, Committee Member — Resigned on 31 March 2022

2. Mr Nagabhushanam Gauri Shankar, CSR Committee Member ( from19 May 2022
to 31 March 2023)

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Consequent to completion of two consecutive 5-year term by M/s. S R Batliboi &
Associates, LLP, Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of Company, M/s. S R
Batliboi & Associates, LLP, ceased to be Statutory Auditors of the Company. Further to
this, the Board recommended M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants, as
Statutory Auditors of the Company. Your Shareholders approved the appointment of
M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the
Company for the first term of 5 years i. e. from the conclusion of 25th AGM to the
conclusion of 30th AGM i.e. from FY 2022/23 to FY 2026/27.

The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification. Notes to Accounts and Auditors'
remarks in their report are self-explanatory and do not call for any future comments.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

The Board of Directors appointed M/s. DSMR & Associates, Company Secretary
(CP No. 4239) as Secretarial Auditor to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for
Financial Year2022-2023.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

In terms of the provisions of section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and with rule 5(2)
and 5 (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)

Rules, 2014, none of the employee draws remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the
said rules.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOG ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE OUTGO:

The Company is engaged in the business of development, and operation of IT Parks. There
are no particulars to be disclosed under the provisions of Section 134 (3) read with the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of “Conservation of Energy & Technology
Absorption etc.

There were no foreign exchange earnings during the year under review while the foreign
exchange outflow is separately covered in the notes on accounts forming part of the audited
financial statement.

DETAILS OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Company has adequate internal control systems commensurate with the size, scale
and complexity of its operations.

With an aim to monitor and control day-to-day operations of the Company, the Company
has set up internal control systems for regular tracking and reporting. The Company has
adequate material internal financial controls and such internal financial controls were

operating effectively. The auditors of your company have endorsed the same view in their
report.

In order to further strengthen the system of Internal Control and to provide the Board of
Directors with an ability to oversee internal controls, Internal Financial Control (IFC) system
was put in place in accordance with the requirements of Section 134(5)€ of Companies Act
2013. Internal Control systems were implemented, considering the framework suggested
in Guidance Note on ‘Audit of Internal Financial Controls over the Financial Reporting’
issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, to address the operational and
financial risk.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

The Company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The details of the investments made by the company are given in the notes to the financial
statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF ACCOUNTS:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS), as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR
ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT

Statutory Auditors:

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in
their report. P
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Secretarial Auditor:

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse

remark. The Secretarial Audit Report given by Secretarial Auditors is annexed with the
report as Annexure — B.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, your Company had complied with all the applicable
SecretarialStandards (SS-1 & §5-2).

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS INITIATED UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (IBC)

Disclosures pertaining to Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process initiated under The
Insolvency and bankruptcy Code, 2016 IBC), are not required to be made for your
Companyduring the year under review.

FRAUDS REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS

No fraud was reported by the Auditors in their reports during the year under review.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS:

During the year no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunalsimpacting the going concern status and company'’s operations in future.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

Pursuant to section 134 (3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has developed
a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key business
objectives. At present the company has not identified any element of risk which may
threatenthe existence of the company.

CONSTITUTION OF VARIOUS COMMITTEES / ADOPTION OF POLICIES

Pursuant to the Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2015-16/013 issued by SEBI with
regard to certain provisions of Chapter IV of SEBI ((Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations) 2021 shall apply to a listed entity that has
listed its non-convertible debt securities and has an outstanding value of listed non-
convertible debt securities of Rupees Five Hundred Crore.

SEBI introduced the concept of High Value Debt Listed Entity (HVDLE) by amending SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (LODR) vide
notification dated September 07, 2022.

The high value debt listed entity (HVDLE) which had listed its non-convertible debt
securities on a recognised stock exchange and had an outstanding principal value of listed
non-convertible debt securities of Rs. 500 Crore and above as on 31 March 2021 were

required to constitute various Committees, adopt various policies and codes under Listing
Regulations.
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Since the value of company’s listed non-convertible debt securities exceed the
threshold limit of Rupees Five Hundred Crore during the financial year 2020 - 2021,
the company was required to comply with the provisions of Regulation 16 to
Regulation 27 of Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations) 2021.

Audit Committee:-

Pursuant to Regulation 18 (1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015, the Company has constituted an Audit Committee on 31 March 2023
and the current composition of the Committee is as under:

1) Mr. Sanjeev Dasgupta, Non-Executive Director

2) Mr. DVM Gopal, Independent Director

3) Ms. Srilatha Cherukuri, Independent Director & Chairperson

The roles and responsibilities of Audit Committee is in accordance with the terms of reference/
Audit Committee Charter

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

Pursuant to Regulation 19 (1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015, the Company has constituted Nomination & Remuneration Committee
on 31 March 2023 and the current composition of the Committee is as under:

1) Mr. Sanjeev Dasgupta, Non-Executive Director

2) Mr. Venkata Madana Gopal Divvelal, Independent Director & Chairman

3) Ms. Srilatha Cherukuri, Independent Director

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Pursuant to the Regulation 20 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), 2015, the Company has constituted a Stakeholders Relationship
Committee on 31 March 2023 to specifically look into various aspect of interest of the
stakeholders, debenture holders and other security holders. The current composition of the
Committee effective is as under:

1) Mr. Sanjeev Dasgupta, Non-Executive Director & Chairman
2) Mr. Cheah Ying Soon, Non-Executive Director
3) Mr. Venkata Madana Gopal Divvelal, Independent Director

Risk Management Committee:-

Pursuant to Regulation 21 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015, the Company has constituted Risk Management Committee on 31
March 2023 and the current composition of the Committee is as under:

1) Mr. Sanjeev Dasgupta, Non-Executive Director & Chairman
2) Mr. Cheah Ying Soon, Non-Executive Director
3) Ms. Srilatha Cherukuri, Independent Director

In compliance with SEBI (Listing Obligation Disclosure Requirement) Regulations,
2015, the company has also adopted various policies under Listing Regulations:-
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Nomination & Remuneration Policy

Policy on diversity of Board of Directors
Familiarization programme for Independent Directors
Policy for preservation of documents

YV VY VY

Code of Conduct for Board & Senior management

The policies are put on the Company's website and can be accessed on the Company’s
website https:/ir.a-itrust.com/vitp.html

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
The Company does not have any subsidiaries.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s
length basis and were in the ordinary course of the business.

There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the company with
Promoters, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have
potential conflict with interest of the company at large.

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section
188(1), as prescribed in Form AOC - 2 of the rules prescribed under Chapter IX relating

to Accounts of Companies under the Companies Act, 2013, is appended as Annexure —
C.

DISCLOSURE AS PER SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has a policy at
group level on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in
line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder.

Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up at group level to redress complaints
on sexual harassment.

During the year under review, the Company has not received any complaints on sexual
harassment.

COST AUDIT RECORDS

The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under the
provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under for
the services rendered by the Company.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Board has framed a Whistle-Blower Policy to conduct its business affairs in a fair
andtransparent manner by adopting highest standards of professionalism.

The policy guides the Directors, Employees and other stakeholders to report_,_geé]r'ﬂiﬁe\;\
/”"-‘_\._ _'-"'_'\?. 4 .".\

v/ ~
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TECH PARK
HYDERABAD, ¢ 1FEI GITY

ﬂ.nﬁ.sundasll?arh
concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Code of
Conduct. The policy has been uploaded in the Company’s website with the following link:
https://ir.a-itrust.com/vitp.html

37. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT

THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING
LOAN FROM THE BANKS:

As per Clause xii read with Rule 8(5) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, no loans

from the banks/ Financial Institutions were under One Time Settlement during the year
under review.

Hence, the difference between amount of Valuation done at the time of Settlement and
Valuation done at the time of taking loans from the banks did not arise.

38. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:
The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of the assistance and support
rendered by State and Central Government Authorities, the Reserve Bank of India, the

Company’s bankers, and the Joint Venture Partners, Viz.,

'The Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation of the sincere efforts of the
employees of the Company in the continuous development of The International Tech Park,

Hyderabad.

By Order of the Board
For VITF' Private lented

L m&: 7 %ﬁ
Sanjeev Dasgupta Ying Soon/Cheah

Director == Director
Place: Singapore (DIN:00090701)~ r (DIN:09406160)
Date : 14 August 2023 PR BN
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DSMR & Associates
D SMRAM Company Secretaries

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2023

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

VITP Private Limited

Capella Block, 5" Floor

Plot No. 17, STPI Layout,
Madhapur, Hyderabad — 500081

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by VITP PRIVATE LIMITED [CIN:
- U72200TG1997PTC026801] (hereinafter referred to as the Company).

Secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for

evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion
thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company as stated above, during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31
March, 2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the

" Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 315 March 2023 according to the
provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under

ii. The Securiﬁ.es Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA") and the rules made there
under in respect to the listed debt securities.

ii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed there under to
i the extent of issue of Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment;

For DSMR & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

-7 1 Wﬁ%'
’ % v DSM RAM

PROPRIETOR
C.P.No. 4239

: Page 1070
# 6-3-668/10/42, Plot No.42, 2nd Floor, Durga Nagar Colony, Punjagutta, Hyderabad - 500082

Tele Fax: 040-2340 8776, Cell ;98482 43356, E-mail: ram.devata@gmail.com
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D S M RAM

DSMR & Associates
Company Secretaries

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘'SEBI Act’):

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008 read with SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [to the extent applicable for
Companies which has its Debt Securities listed on the exchanges)

Pursuant to the Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2015-16/013 issued by
SEBI with regard to certain provisions of Chapter IV of SEBI ((Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations)
2021 'shall apply to a listed entity that has listed its non-convertible debt
securities and has an outstanding value of listed non-convertible debt
securities of Rupees Five Hundred Crore and above w.e.f 07.09.2021.

Since the value of company’s listed non-convertible debt securities exceed
the threshold limit of Rupees Five Hundred Crore during the financial year
2020 - 2021 it is required to ensure the necessary compliance.

Accordingly, the company shall comply with the provisions of Regulation 16
to Regulation 27 of Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations) 2021 on a ‘Comply or
Explain’ basis until March 31, 2023 and on a mandatory basis thereafter.

However, the company choose to comply with some of the provisions as of
now which are listed as below:

Regulation | Text Comply or | Compliance
: Explain from 15t April
2023
17 Composition of Board of | Explain Yes
Directors B, ,
17A Maximum  number  of | Complied NA -‘
directorships
18 Audit Committee Explain Yes
19 Nomination and | Explain Yes
remuneration committee
20 Stakeholders Relationship | Explain Yes
- Committee o
21 Risk Management | Explain Yes
Committee
22 Vigil mechanism Complied Yes
23 Related Party Explain Yes
| Transactions |

For DSMR & ASSOCIATES

COMPANY SECRETARIES

. St Wwfﬂ/
/ DSM RAM
PROPRIETOR

C.P.No. 4239

Page 201 6
# 6-3-668/10/42, Plot No.42, 2nd Floor, Durga Nagar Colony, Punjagutta, Hyderabad - 500082

Tele _Fax:'040-2340 8776, Cell ;98482 43356, E-mail: ram.devata@gmail.com
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DS M RAM Company Secretaries

24 Corporate Governance | NA Company does
requirements with respect not have any
to subsidiary of listed entity Subsidiary.

24A Secretarial Audit Explain Yes

24A Secretarial Compliance | Explain Yes

- Report
25 Obligations with respect to | Explain Yes
. independent directors
26 Obligations with respect to | Explain Yes
- | employees including senior '
management, key
managerial persons,
i | directors and promoters | ) —

27 Other Corporate | Explain Yes

Governance Requirements

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing |
with client with regard to its Equity Shares and Debentures.

Since the Company's Equity Shares are not listed on any Stock Exchange, the following

regulations, whlich are applicable to companies whose Equity Shares are listed, does not
apply to the Company:

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011,

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefit
Schemes) Regulations, 2014;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) |
Regulations, 2009 P

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998

vi. | further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the
Company and on the examination of the relevant documents and records in
pursuance thereof, on test -check basis the Company has complied with the following
specific law to the extent applicable to the Company:

Airport Authority Act, 1994 For DSMR & ASSOCIATES

a.
b. Forest Conservation Act, 1980 COMPANY SEGRETARIES
c. Indian Forest Act, 1947 2 e '
d. Transfer of Property Act, 1882 / = M&
e. Registration Act, 1908 PROPRIETOR
C.P.No. 4239
Page 301 b '

# 6-3-668/10/42, Plot No.42, 2nd Floor, Durga Nagar Colony, Punjagutta, Hyderabad - 500082
Tele Fax: 040-2340 8776, Cell :98482 43356, E-mail: ram.devata@gmail.com
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f. Building and Other Construction Workers (Regulation of Employment and
Conditions of Services) Act, 1996
g. Building and Other Construction Workers (Welfare Cess) Act, 1996

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India. Since only the Secretarial standards on Meetings of the Board of
Directors (SS-1) and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2) have
been notified and effective from 1%.uly, 2015, the Company has complied
with the said Standards.

(ii) The Company has also entered into Listing Agreement with the BSE Limited
for listing of its debt securities. The Company has complied with all the
provisions of the listing agreement and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 relating to Debt Regulations and
would comply with the other regulations.

| further report that since the company “VITP PRIVATE LIMITED” being a private limited
company, there is no such requirement as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 to

. appoint independent directors / Whole time director / Managing director / Directors retiring by -
rotation and the board of the Company has been duly constituted with proper balance of
Non-Executive Directors.

Mr. Ying Soon Cheah (DIN: 09406160) was appointed as an Additional Director of the
Company w.e.f. 24 November 2021 and his appointment was regularized as Director
effective from 14 April 2022,

The Company has a Company Secretary (hereinafter referred to as KMP) as envisaged
under the provisions of Section 203 the Companies Act, 2013.

" .| further report that the compliance by the company with the applicable financial laws such
as direct and indirect tax laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts
has not been reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to review by Statutory
financial auditor and other designated professionals.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings that were sent in .
accordance with the statutory requirement. Agenda and detailed notes on'agenda were
being sent at least seven days in advance. A system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Companiesl Act, 2013 and the rules made
there under, @
1.‘3 ©°
| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company ,«\1;3*
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and@ (Q‘ ﬁ'j
d guideli & .
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. %\\\'\ A ﬁﬁ

s

oro—,
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- _ | further report that, during the audit period there were no other specific events / actions in
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc. having a major
bearing on the Company’s affairs.

For DSMR & Associates

Place: Hyderabad ! ;
Date: 7" August, 2023 / * LS MMW‘ Q7'

D S M Ram

C. P. No. 4239
: ' Proprietor
UDIN: A014939E000755129

Peer Review Certificate No. 1252/2021

" This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
forms an integral part of this report.

PAEE S 0T 0
# 6-3-668/10/42, Plot No.42, 2nd Floor, Durga Nagar Colony, Punjagutta, Hyderabad - 500082

Tele Fax: 040-2340 8776, Cell :98482 43356, E-mail: ram.devata@gmail.com



DSMR & Associates
If) S MRAM # ¥ Company Secretaries

Annexure ‘A’

) " To,

The Members,

VITP Private Limited

Capella Block, 5" Floor

Plot No. 17, STPI Layout,
Madhapur, Hyderabad — 500081

Management’s responsibility:
1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records

based on my audit.

Auditor’s Responsibiliti!:

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurances about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the .
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happenings of events étc.

4, The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

Disclaimer:

. 5. The Secretarial’Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

6. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company and compliance with the applicable accounting
standards since the same has been subject to review by the Statutory Auditors.

For DSMR & Associates
Company Secretaries

DS MRam

C. P. No. 4239

. i Proprietor
i _ UDIN No: A014939E000755129
Peer Review Certificate No. 1252/2021

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 7™ August, 2023
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Annexure-C

FORM NO. AQC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

Name(s) Nature of Duration of | Salient terms |Justification | Amount Date(s) of | Date on
of the contracts/ the of the for entering | paid as | approval | which the
related arrangement | contracts / | contracts or |into such advances | by the special
party & s/ arrangeme | arrangement |contracts or | , if any Board \rs:slutnon
Nature of | transactions | nts sor arrangeme passed in
relationshi ftransaction | fransactions |nts or General
P including the |transaction meeting as
value, if any |s’ required
under first
proviso
to section
A 188
NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis:
Name(s) of the | Nature of Duration | Salient terms of  |Justification | Amount Date(s) of
related party & contracts/ of the the contracts or  |for entering | paid as approval by
Nature of arrangement | contract | arrangements or |into such advances, if | the Board
relationship s/ s/ transactions contracts or | any
transactions | arrange | including the arrangement
ments value, if any s or
[transacti transactions’
ons
CapitaLand Property 10 Years Availing of NIL NIL August 7,
Services (India) | Management w.e.f. General 2017
Private Limited Agreement | August 1| Management,
(CSIPL) formerly 2017 Property
(Ascendas Management,
Services (India) Lease
Private Limited Management,
ASIPL) Marketing etc.
(transaction value
as mentioned in
the financials of
the company).
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3. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not in the ordinary course of

business:
Name(s) Nature of Duration of | Salient terms [Justification | Amount Date(s) of | Date on
of the contracts/ the of the for entering | paid as approval | which the
related arrangement | contracts / | contracts or |into such advances | by the special
party & s/ arrangeme | arrangement |contracts or | , if any Board resolution
Nature of | transactions | nts s or arrangeme was
relationshi [transaction | transactions |nts or passed in
p s including the |[transaction General
value, ifany |s’ meeting as
required
under first
proviso
to section
188
\i!L NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Place: Singapore

Date : 14 August 2023

A

Sanjeev Dasgupta
Director

(DIN:00090701)

By Order of the Board
For VITP Private Limited

sty V?’d"

Ying Soon Cheah
Director

(DIN:09406160)

N
N
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of VITP Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of VITP Private Limited (“the Company”}, which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, {*Ind AS"} and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit, totai comprehensive income, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As)
specified under section 143{10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India {ICAI) tegether with the ethical reguirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in cur professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the ¢ontext of
our audit of the financial statements as a2 whole, and in forming cur opinion thereon, and we do not provide

a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report,

Sr. | Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response
No.
1 Evaluation of Tax Principal Audit Procedures performed.
I_.l’gg?etlro:s{g%sgtk?:r)}sof + Assessed the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of
the financial management’s key internal controls over evaluation of potential impact of
statements litigations inciuding controfs over recognition of provisions relating to
taxation and disclosures on contingent liability.

» Obtained list of direct and indiract tax litigations as at March 31, 2023
from the management.

¢ We together with our tax specialists, evaluated Management's assessment
with respect to such tax litigations to assess the adequacy of tax
provisions including the outcome of previous litigations and other judicial
pronouncements on similar matters etc.

» We have assessed the adeguacy of the Company’s disclosures in respect
of contingant liabilities in the financial statements.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

« The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director's report, but does not include the financial
staternents and our auditor’s report thereon.

» Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion theregn.

« In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with

the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

« If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is @ material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
This responsibility alse includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisians of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policias; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy angd completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the

financiaf statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liguidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professionat
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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« Identify and assess the risks of materiai misstatement of the finandial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controi,

+  Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controts
with reference to financial statements in place and the cperating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern,

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whethar the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves failr presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning

the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the resuits of our work; and {ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in cur report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,
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b)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examinaticn of those books, except that the back-up of books of account
and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on servers
physicaily located in India on a daily basis {Refer note 39 to the financial statements).

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith,
are as stated in paragraph (b) above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Raport in “Annexure A", Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls with reference fo financial
statements

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(18) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us,

the Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related to the managerial
remuneration is not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financia! statements - Refer note 26 (c) to the financial statements

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferraed, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. {a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disciosed in note 35 (v) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
foaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity{ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded m
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in ather persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company {(“tUltimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(b} The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 35 (vi} to the financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Company from any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“"Ultimate

Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii} of Rule 11(e), as
provided under {(a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed
final dividend for the year,

vi. Proviso to Rule 3{1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log)
facility is applicable to the Company w.e.f. Aprit 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under
Rute 1i(g) of Companias (Audit and Auditors) Ruies, 2014 is not applicable for the financial
vear ended March 31, 2023,

2. As required by the Companies {(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B" a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Partner
{Membership No. 210840)
UDIN: 23210840BGXLHHI011

Place : Bengaluru
Date: May 29, 2023
SMG/AN/2023
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ANNEXURE “"A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1{g} under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause
{i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™)

We have audited the internal financia! controls over financial reporting of VITP Private Limited (“the

Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls with reference to financial statements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities inctude the design, implemeantation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is ko express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
“Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repotting {the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143{10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in ail material respects,

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have ¢btained is sufficient and appropriate £o provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s interna!l financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is 2 process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial contro! with reference to financial statements includes thase pelicies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accuratety and fairty reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a materiai effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of coilusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaiuation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internat financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of comgliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2023, based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to financial statements
established by the Company considering the essential components of internai control stated in the Guidance

Note on Audit of Internat Financial Controls Over Financial Reparting issued by the Institute of Charterad
Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins B: Sells
Chartered Accountants

Shreedhar Ghanekar
Partner

{Membership No. 210840)
UDIN: 23210840BGXLHHO011

Place : Bengaluru
Date; May 29, 2023
SMG/AN/2023
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements® section of
aur report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we

state that:
(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property, Investment
Property under Development.
{B) As the Company does not hold any intangible assets, reporting under clause 3(i}(a)(B) of
the Order is not applicable.

{b) The Company has program of verification of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment
Property, Investment Property under Development so as to cover all the items once every
two vears which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, some of the assets were physically verified
during the year. No materia! discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

(c) Based on our examination of the registered sale deed/transfer deed provided to us, we
report that, the title deeds of all the immovable properties, disclosed in the financial
statements included in investment property are held in the name of the Company as at
the balance sheet date, except for the following:

Relevant Description of | Gross Title deed | Whether Property Reason for not being
line item in | property Value held in the | tile deed | held since | held in the name of the
Balance {(Rs. in | name of holder is a | which date | company
sheet millions) promoter,
director or
relative of
promoter/
director or
employee
of
promoter/
director
Investment Leasehold Land 630.99 | FDPL Ko 17 July | As per Amalgamation
Property located at Private 2018 Order issued by National
Hinjewadi Limited Company Law Tribunal,
Village, Taluka Hyderabad, the whole of
Mulshi, Pune the property, rights and
District powers of FDPL Private
measuring Limited, the Ctransferor
10.1766 Company, be transferred
hectares. without any further act or
deed to transferee
Company (VITP Private
Limited).
Frechold Land 172.00 | Vanenburg No 25t Aprii | As per the order dated
located at IT Park Pvt 2001 Oct 18, 2005 received
Madhapur Limited from registrar of
Village, companies of Andhra
Serifingampalty Pradesh, the name of the
Mandal, Company  has been
Rangareddy changed from
District, "Wanenburg IT Park Pvt
Hyderabad Limited" to VITP Private
measuring Limited.
69.647.60 and
24,200 Sq.
__ Yards.
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(i)

(i)

(d)

{e)

(a)

(b)

(b)

(9

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Ebquipment, Investment
Property, Investment Property under Development. The Company does not have any
Intangible assets or Right of Use assets.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 {as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

The inventories in the nature of stores, spares and fuel were physically verified during
the year by the Management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification
by the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its operatlons. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class

of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared
with books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time of the
vear, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital facility from banks or

financial institutions and hence reporting under clause 3 (ii){b) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has provided loans and advances in the nature of loans during the year
and details of which are given below:

Particulars Loans
(Rs. in Millions)

A. Aggregate amount granted during the year:
- QOthers 100
B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect
of above cases:
- Others 100

The Company has not provided any guarantee or security to any other entity during the
year.

The investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of the above-mentioned
ioans provided during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the
Company’s interest.

In respect of loans granted and advances in the nature of loans provided by the
Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stiputated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are regular
as per stipuiations except for the following:
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Name of the | Nature | Amount | Due Extent of | Remarks
Entity (Rs.in Date Delay
Million)
Apex Urban | Interest 268.81 Within tpto 45 | Payment received in fuil on May
Infrastructure ’ Five Months 03, 2023,
Private Limited 79.97 days Upto 22 | Payment received in full on May
' after the | Months 03, 2023.
LOMA Co- end of [Upto 29| The Company is currently in
Developers 2 161.22 gach Months discussions with the management
Private Limited ) financial of LOMA for recovering these
{LOMA) quarter, amounts.
Phoenix Infocity 274.22 Upto 47 | Payment received in full on May
Private Limited ) Mgnths 03, 2023.
(PIPL} 244 54 Upto 27 | Payment received in full on May
) Months 03, 2023,
Phoenix Infrasoft Upto 25 | The Company is currently in
India Private 20.21% Months discussions with the management
Limited (PIIPL) ' of PIIPL for recovering these
amounts.,
Phoenix Infraspace Upto 28 | The Company is currently in
India Private 17.53%x Months discussions with the management
Limited (PHIIPL) ’ of PHIIPL for recovering these
amounts.
Phoenix Techno Hub Upto 20 i The Company is currently in
Private Limited 256.08 Months discussions with the management
{PTHPL) ' of PTHPL for recovering these
amounts.
Phoenix  Ventures Upto 21 | The Company is currently in
Private Limited 438.38 Months discussions with the management
{PVPL) ) of PVPL for recovering Ethese
amounts.

* Excludes amount of Rs. 10.80 million accrued for first 18 months from the date of investment (February
12, 2019) for which payment would be adjusted in accordance with the terms of the agreement. Delays
reported above have been accordingly computed.

** Excludes amount of Rs, 8,93 million accrued for first 18 months from the date of investment (February
12, 2019) for which payment would be adjusted in accordance with the terms of the agreement. Delays
reported above have heen accordingly computed.

{d) In respect of following iocans granted and advances in the nature of loans provided by
the Company, which have been overdue for more than 90 days at the balance sheet
date, as expiained to us, the Management has taken reasonable steps for recovery of
the principal amounts and interest,
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Rs. In Million
Name of the Entity | Number | Principal | Interest Total Remarks
of Cases | overdue | overdue | overdue
Apex Urban B Payment received in full on May
Infrastructure 15 268.81 268.81 03, 2023,
Private Limited Payment received in full on May
8 79.97 79.97 03, 2023,
LOMA, Co-Developers The Company is currently in
2 Private Limited _ discussions with the management
(LOMA) 10 161.22 161.22 of LOMA for reccvering these
amounts.
Phoenix Infocity B Payment received in fult on May
Private Limited 16 774.22 774.22 03, 2023.
(PIPL) Payment received in full on May
9 244 .54 244.54 03, 2023,
Phoenix Infrasoft The Company is currently in
India Private Limited _ * discussions with the management
{PIIPL)* 8 20.21 20.21 of PIIPL for recovering these
amounts,
Phoesnix Infraspace The Company is currently in
India Private Limited } sk discussions with the management
{PHIIPL)** 9 17.53 17.53 of PHIIPL for recovering these
amounts.
Phoenix Techno Hub The Company is currently in
Private Limited discussions with the management
(PTHPL) / 256.08 | 256.08 | ¢ bripL for recovering these
amounts,
Phoenix Ventures The Company is currently in
Private Limited _ discussions with the management
(PVPL) 7 438.38 438.38 of PVPL for recovering these
amaounts.

* Excludes amount of Rs. 10.80 million accrued for first 18 months from the date of investment (February
12, 2019) for which payment would be adjusted in accordance with the terms of the agreement. Delays
reported ahove have been accordingly computed.

*#* Excludes amount of Rs. 8.93 million accrued for first 18 months from the date of investment (February
12, 2019) for which payment would be adjusted in accordance with the terms of the agreement. Delays
reported above have been accordingly computed,

(e)

No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted by the Company which has fallen due

during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle overdues

of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f)

According to information and explanation given to us and based on the audit procedures

performed, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in nature of loans either
repavable on demand or without specifying any terms or period or repayment during
the year. Hence reporting under clause 3 (iit}(f) is not appllcable.

(iv)

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the

Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made,

(v}

The Company has nof accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.

Hence, reporting under clause 3 {v) of the Order is not applicable.

()

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified for the activities of the Company by

the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.
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{vil)

(viif)

(a)

(b}

In respect of statutory dues:

Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of customs, duty of excise, Value added Tax, cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to the Campany have been regularly deposited by it with
the appropriate authorities, We have been informed that the provisions of Employees’ State
Insurance Act, 1948 are currently not applicable o the Company. There were no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of Goeds and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Income tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, Value added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears
as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payabie,

Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause {a) above which have not been deposited
as on March 31, 2023, on account of disputes are given below:

Rs. In Million

Nature of | Nature of | Forum Period to Amount Amount
Statute Dues where which the | Involved Unpaid
Dispute is | Amount
Pending Relates
Andhra Sales tax | High Court of | 2002-03  to 22.36 5.73
Pradesh Andhra 2004-05
General Sales Pradesh
tax Act 1957
Andhra Sales tax | Assessing 2011-12 o 26.93 13.97
Pradesh VAT Officer 2012-13
Act 2005
Finance Act, | Service Custom July 2013 to 0.57 0.53
1994 tax Excise & | March 2014
Service Tax | April 2014 to 3.22 2.97
Appellate September
Tribunal 2015
October 2015 1.34 1.11
to June 2017
Income-tax Income Commissioner | AY 2007-08 44.22 44,22
Act, 1961 Tax# of Income Tax | AY 2011-12 74.40 74.40
appeals AY 2012-13 38.39 38.39
High Court AY 2013-14 33.54 28.61
High Court AY 2014-15 34.11 -
Commissioner | AY 2015-16 20.65 20.65
of Income Tax
appeals
Assessing AY 2016-17 16.79 16.79
Officer
Commissioner | AY 2017-18 22.00 22.00
of Income Tax | AY 2008-09, * *
appeals 2010-11 and
2018-19
Notes:

* In view of the short grant of TDS credit, the tax authorities have not demanded any
amount. However, this would result lower grant of TDS by Rs. 61.97 million.

# Amount demanded is net of refund claimed by the Company in its return of income for the
respective assessment years,

There were no transactions refating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered
or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)
during the year.
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(ix) (&)

(b}

(©)

(d)

(e)
(f)

(x} (a)

(b)

(i) (2)

(b)

(

(xii)

(i)

(xiv)  (a)

(b)

{(xv)

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
Government or any Government authority.

The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no unutilized term

loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3 (ix){c) of the Order
is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any funds on short-term basis and hence, reporting under
clause 3 (ix}{d) of the Order is not applicable,

The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year and
hence, reporting under clause 3 (ix){(e) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate companies.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3 {x)(a} of
the Order is not applicable.

During the vear, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debenturas (fully or partly or optionally} and hence reporting under
clause 3 (x){b} of the Order is not applicabie to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year,

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the
date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year and upto the date of this report,

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 {xii) of the Order
is not applicable.

In our apinien, the Company Is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, wheare applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion, the Company has an adeguate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year and
covering the period until 31 October 2022, Based on information and explanations provided

o us, internal audit covering the balance period up to 31 March 2023 is due in the ensuing
internal audit cycle.

In our opinion, during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its directors or persens connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 152
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.
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{xvi) {a,b,c) The Company is not required to be registered under Secticn 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of

India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3 (xvi)(a), (b) and {c) of the Order is not
applicable.

() The Group (“Companies in the Group” as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Directions) dees net have any CIC (Core Investment Company} as part of the group
and accordingly reporting under clause 3 {xvi{{d) of the Order is not applicable.

{xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year covered by our audit and in
the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviil) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year,

{xix}) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, ageing

and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabliities, other
information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supperting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting Is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of cne year from
the balance sheet date, wili get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

{xx} The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility
{CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amounts for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund
specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the
provision of sub-section {6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3 (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year,

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registratipn No. 0080725)

Shreadhar Ghanekar
Partner

(Membership No. 210840)
UDIN: 23210840BGXLHH2011

Place : Bengaluru
Date: May 29, 2023
SMG/AN/2023




VITE Private Limited

CIMN: U72200T G1997 FTCO26801

Balance sheel as at March 31, 2023

{All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless atherwise stated)

2 Asab Asat
P ERAir Diptse March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
MNom=current assets
Property, plant and equipment L] M 3
Investment property 4 11,638.18 6,958.54
Investment property under development 3 373.16 295169
Financial assets
Investmenls BA 1,123.92 4435.02
Loans ] 1,627.00 1,932.00
Other bank balances 7 1502 313
Cther financial assets 6L 100.85 66,33
Mon-<urrent tax assets (net) 8 67491 551.30
Other non-current assets 9 35591 753,85
16,139.40 17,742.43
Current assels
Inventories n 713 700
Financial assels
Investments 6 1,663.92 -
Trade receivables 1 2429 1894
Cash and cash equivalents 12 1,605.65 452 36
Leans 6B 1.395.00 9000
Other financial assets &C 2.366.72 202485
Other current assets 9 76.10 47.25
713581 3,580.40
Tolal Assels 23,278.21 21,322.83
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 13 1,058.98 1.038.98
Other equily T4 3,615.38 3,149.33
4,674.36 4,208.31
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Barrowings 154 11,673.37 1245748
Other financial liabilities 15C 35822 22515
rovisions 17 1r# 130
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 15{a} 270.71 213,70
Other nan-current liabilities mn 31,31 087
12,368.80 12,910.22
Cugrent liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 158 350.00 -
Trade payables 19
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1295 1276
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than miceo enterprises and 195.70 17.92
small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 150 535273 3,850,58
Current tax liabilities (net) 16 37 .17
Oither current liabilities 0 92.47 6187
Provisions 17 0.01 0.00
f,235.05 4,174.30
‘Total Equity and Liabilities 23,278.21 21,322.33
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes farm an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our report attached

Parmer
Wlembership Moo 210840
Place: Bengaluru

Date; May 29, 2023

CHARTERED |

ACCOUNTANTS |~
[}

For and on behalf of
Private Limite

Direckor

DIN @ 08221638
Place: Singapore
Date: May 29, 2023

Woto

Kotilingam Koppu
Company Secretary

Membership No.: (A-17903)

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 29, 2023

e Board of Direclors

abhushanam Gauri Shankar

T -

=

Sanjeev Dasgupha
Director

DN DO0R0701
Place: Singapore
Date: May 29, 2023




VITP Private Limited

CIN: U72200TG1997PTCO26801

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Fteitakiss Notes  TOF the Year Ended Fur the Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income
Revenue from operations 21 2,231.14 2,108.26
Other income 22 121371 1,201.65
Total Income 3,444.85 3,309.91
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 23 7.04 7.74
Finance costs 24 1.632.13 1,669.78
Depreciation expense 25 601.49 478.94
Other expenses 26 481.63 450.81
Total Expenses 2,72229 2,607.27
Profit before tax 722,56 702.64
Tax expenses 18{b}
Current lax 199.50 221.14
Deferred tax 57.01 1193
Tolal Tax expense 256.51 23307
Profit for the year 166,05 469.57
Other comprehensive income ('OCT')
Tterus that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (Refer Note (0.00) 0.04
{ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (0.00) 0.01
‘Total other comprehensive income (0.00) 0.05
Total comprehensive income for the year 466.05 469.62
Earnings per equily share [nominal value of shares Rs.10 (March 31, 2022: Rs. 10)]
Basic (Ra.) 27 1877 38.78
Diluted (Rs.) 27 38.77 38,78
Summary of significant accounting policies 22

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
red Accountants

Nao: 0080725

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 29, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Cfl’ Private Limigd

Nagabhushanam Gauri Shankar
Director

DIN : 18221638

Place: Singapore

Date: May 29, 2023

o | -
Lo o | P
/T-)

Kotilingam Koppu

Company Secretary

Membership No.: {A-17903)

Flace: Hyderabad

Date: Nlay 29, 2023

Sanjeev Dasgupta
Director

DIN: 00090701
Place: Singapore
Date: May 29, 2023




VITP Private Limited

CIN: UT2200TG1997PTO0Z6801

Cash Oow statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Al amonnts are in millions of Indisn Rupees, unless otherwise staled)

Pasticulazs For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A Cash flow from operaling activities
Profit before taxation (including OCI} 71256 F0rod
Addjustments for:
Depreciation exponse e 47894
Interest income {L111.29) (L120.06)
Amortisation of marketing fees 5074 R
Provisinn no longer required writen back (#7403} [48.63)
Provsien for litigalions - 184
Finance costs 163213 L&6Y.TE
Expected credit loss allowame 0.0 1116
{Gaind/ Toss on discand/sali of property, plant and equipmient ard investment property (net] 07 (0083}
Operating Profit hefore working capital changes 1,808.92 1,715.00
Working capital adjustments
(Inereasc)/ Decrease in trade payables (22038 43.68
Decroasef [Increase) in other financial latnlities 13 B (@310
Cwerease in ather liabdlities 3060 144
Devrease in provisions {1215 -
Decrease in deferred rovenue A5 17m
(Increase) in trade receivahles (5.33) (L)
(Inurease) in inventories {0.13) {7.00)
Decrease in other financal assets 82 81
(Inerease) in other bonk halonces (1284} (3.18)
Dicrease/ (Increase) in olher assels 1R7 42 (190,22}
Cash generated from operations 2,165.25 1,540.05
Taxes paid (322.91) (59.93)
Met cash flow from operabing activities L2 140,12
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of prop plant amd equip inlucing praperty, capital work-in-progniss. {2,349.05) {1,276.24)
Proceeds rom sabe of property, plant and equipment and investment properly 137.76 083
Interest Income on loans, investments and bank deposits 74139 24382
Investments in bank deposits (having uriginal msturity of more than three months) {12.54) (him
Investment in non-converible debentures - (380000
Red of non- ible deby 5 1,7001.18 -
Loans given (100,00 -
Loans realised - 200,00
Met cash Flaw fromfused in) investing activities 157.4 (1,212,786}
. Cash flow from flnancing activities
Procesds from berrowings 23R
Repayment of burrowings (7000 ) -
Tnterest paid on bomrewings {436.49) (A019.77)
MNet cash used in financing activities (88649} {609.77)
Met inerease/[decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,113.29 (382.41)
Cash and cash equivalents ot the beginning of the year 492 .36 £74.77
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 12} 1,605.65 492.36

Note:

The abiove cash ow statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Methol! as sel oubin the Accounting Standard {Tnd AS) 7- "Cash Flaw Statements” a5 netified under Companies {Aceounts)

Rules, 2015 {as amended from Lime Lo lime).

Summary of significant acconnting policies

The accompanying notes form an in
In lerms of oitr report altached

pral parl of e finencial statements.

eloitte Haskins & Sells
ha\ered Avcountants

Place: Bengaluru
Dale: May 29, 2023
—
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

V “rivale Limited

Nagabhushanam Gauri Shankar

Director
DIN : 0R2216348

Plave: Singapors
Date: May 29, 2023

Kntilingam Koppu
Company Secretary
Membership Moz (A-17903)
Place: Hyderahad

Date: May 29, 2023

»

b\~

Sanjeev Dasgupla
Drirector
DN (90701

Flacv: Singapone
Date: May 29, 2023



VITP Private Limited
CIN: U72200TG1997 1T C026801

Statement of changes in equily for the year ended March 31, 2023

[All amounts are in millions of Indian Qupees, unless otherveise stated)

a. Equily Share Capital

MNumber of shares Amount
Equity shares of ks 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at March 31, 2022 10,589,824 1,058.98
As at hlacch 31, 2023 10,588,824 1.058.98
b, Other equity
For the year ended March 31, 2023
Altributable to equity holders of the Company - Reserves and surplus
T Vgl redenption P R General reserve | Retained earnings ek
reserve redemption resenve

As at April 01, 2022 178.94 228.63 117.04 262472 3,149.33
Profit for the year = = - 466,05 46605
Other comprehensive income [net of lax) - - (0.00) {000}
Tuotal comprehensive income 178.94 228.63 117.04 3,090.77 3,615.38
Transfer to reserves

Debenture redemplion reserve - 64,86 - {64.86) -
As at March 31, 2023 178.94 293.49 117.04 3,025.91 3,615.38
For the year ended March 31, 2022

Attributable to equity holders of the Company - Reserves and surplus Total
Particulars Capital redemption Det ¢ General reserve | Retained earnings
Teserve redemption resenve

As at April 01, 2021 178.94 166.15 117.04 2,217.58 2,679.71
Profit for the year - - - 46957 469.57
Other comprehensive income {net of tax) - - - 0.05 n.os
Total comprehensive income 178.94 166.15 117.04 2,687.20 3,149.33
[ransfer {0 reserves

Debenture redemption reserve - 62.48 - (62 48) -
As at March 31, 2022 178.94 228.63 117.04 2,624.72 3,149.33

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of owr repor! attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
dred Accountants
Registrafion No.: DUS0725
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Private Limik
-

Nagabhushanam Gauri Shankar

Director

DIN ; 08221638
Place: Singapore
Date: May 29, 2023

Katilingam Koppu
Company Secretary

8

Membership No.. (A-17903)

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 29, 2023
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Sanw

Director

DIN: 00090701
Place: Singapore
Date: May 29, 2023
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Corporate Tnformiatinn

VITP Private Limited (VITP ar 'the Company ) is o private company demeiled in [ndia and ls incorporated under the pravisions of the Coupanivs At applivable in India. The regisiered
affice of the Company s lovated at Capella Block, Sth Floor, Plut Me.l7 Suftware Units Layaut, Madiapur Hyderabad Rangareddi Telanpana S00081 India. The Company is & wholly
ownpd subsidiary of Ascendas Praperty Fumd (India) Ple Lid

The Company is principally engaged in the business of developing operating and maintaining fndostrial and IT/ITES purks on SEZ and non5EZ lands and invidental and assaciated
aclivitios, Information on other related party rebationships of the Company 15 provided in note 33.

The financial stilements wen: autharised far issue accandance with a resolution of the directars an May 20, 2023,
Significant accounting palicies

hasis of preparation

The finangal stalements of the Company have been prepared in sccordance with Tndian Accounting Standards {lod A5) natified under the Compantes (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 205 {as amended from tme Lo time).

O Alarch 24, 3021, the Ministry of Corporale Affairs (MEA) through o notification, aniended Scheduts 11 of e Companics Act, 2003 and the amendments are applicable for finaniial
periods commencitg lrom T April 2021, The preparation of financial staloments is after Laking into consideration the effect of the amvended Schedule 11 The Company has also reclassilied

e provious year ligures in accordance with the sequinaments applivable in the corrent year,

These financial statements have heen prepared on a historicel cost basis, excepl for certain fimancial assets and Uabilities (refer accounting policy repording fingncial instruments), which
have been measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in INR and ol values are rounded 1o the nearest millions (INR G0060), except when atherwise indicated.

5 y of significant ac ing policics

Use of eslimates

The prepuration of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS reguires the manageaent o make judgements, estimates amd assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assels and liabilities and e disclosure of contingent abilitics, at the end of the reporting period, Although these cstimales are based on the management’s best knowledge of
currenl gvents and actions, uncertainty about these dssumplions and estimales could result in e oulcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amaunls of assels or liahilities,
The effect of change in an accounting estimate is recognived prospectively.

Revenue Recagnition

Rovenur from contracts with custamers {5 reeagnized when control of the goeds or serviees are transforred (o the customer al an amount that reflects the consideration Lo which the
Company expeds W be entited in excdunge for tose goods ar services. Revenue is measured Tased on Uhe transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and ather
eredits, if any, 45 specifivd in the contract with the customer. The Company presents revenue from contracts with customers nel of indirect Laxes in it slatement of profit and loss.

The Company vonsiders whether there are uther promises in the contract thal are separate performance obligations bo which a pertion of the transation prive needs Lo be allocated. In
determining the transactinn price, the Company considers the effects of variahle consideration, the vxistence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration
payable W the customer {if any].

The specific recognition eriteria described bulow must also by met belore nevenue is necognized.

Rental incams reveleable under operating leases (excluding rovenui share arrangements) is recognized in the income statement on 4 straighit-line basis vver the term of the fease Tock in
prrind.

Fental income under operating leases having revenue share areangements is recagnized as per e terms ol the contract.

Operations, maintendanoe and ulilities income is recagnized on rendering of services as per Lhe lerms of the vontracl

Car park incame incluides revere earned from the operalions of the parking facilities, which [s recognized when Uhe services are rendered.
[aterest income, including incame arising from other fnandal instruments, is ercopnized using the effective interest rate method,

Contract Balances

Cuintrait assel is te right to consideration i exchange for goods or services Lrans formed to the customer. [ the Company performs by lransferring gonds oF servioes o a customer before Lhe
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, o contract asset is recngnized for Ui cared vonsideralion that is conditional,

Trade recvivable represents e Conipany's right L an amen af consideration that is unconditional (i, only the passage of lime is required befure pay Lol the consideration is due).

Contract lahility is the abligation to transfer goods oe services 1o costomer fior which the Company has received consideration {or an amount of consderation is due) from the custinmer.
Contracts in which the poous or services transferred are lower than the amount billed te the customer, the difference is recognized as "Unearned revenue” anil presented i the Balance
Sheel under "Other current labilities".

Contract cost assets
The Company pays salvs commission far contracts that they obstain o sell certain units of praperty and capitalizes the incremental costs of obtaining & contracl. These costs are amorlized

ona syslematic basis that 15 consistent with the transler of the prapery to the customyer, Capilalized costs Lo ohlain such contrants are presented separately as o current asset in the Balance
Sheet,

|/ GHA ED




¢} Propedy, plant & equipment
Properly, plant & equipment are stated al tweir cost of avyquisitionfeonstruction, net ol accumulated depreciation a

impairment losses, if any.

Thae cost comprises purchase price, borrwing (osts if capitalization entenn are mel, directly attributable cost of bringing the assel to its g, comdition for the inended use and il
cstimate of decommissioning, restoring and sinsilar labilities. Fach par of an item of properly, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in selabion W the tatal cost of the item is
depreciated separately. This applics mainly Lo componenls of plam and equipment. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required o be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them soparately hased on their spedtic useful lives. Likewise, when a majur inspecLivn is perlarmed, its cost is recopnized in the varrying amount of the plant and equipment as
areplacement if e recognition criteria are satisfied. Al other repair and mainlenance costs are tecognised in prafivar [nss as inverred.

Subsequent expenditures related W an item ol praperly, plant and cquipment ane added Lo its book value anly if they increase the future benefits from the existing assel Deyond ils
previnusly assessed standard of perfoomance.

Anitem of ty, plant anl i anl any significant part initially recogr
propery. | Ul Ly SIA ¥
dispesal, Any gain or luss
inwome stal L whaen e

ol s derecopnised upon dispusal or when no Future cconomic benelits ane expected from its use or
ising on derecopnition of the asset (valoulated as the difference hitween the net disposal procecds amd the carrying ameunt of the assel) is induded i e
porty, plant and equiy derecoynised,

Expenditure directly rliting Lo consteuction activily 5 capitaliz d. Indirect expeandi incurred during construction perod s capitalized 1o the eaent o which the expenditure is
indirectly rolated 1o construction o is incidental thereta, Other fndinet expendi (including | ing vosts) incurred during the construction period which i neither wlaled Lo the
construction activity nor is fneidental thereto s charged Lo e statement of profit and loss,

Cost of ssels not ready for use at the balanee sheet date are disclosed under capital wark-1n-progress.

dj  Investment propedies

Towestment properlivs are measured initially al cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to inilial recognilion, imwstment propertivs ane stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and acoumulated impainment less, ifany.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and burrawing costs for long-term construction profecls if Uhe ecognition erileria are met, When signiticant parts of U investment propuerly ane
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreclates them separately based on Uheir specific wseful lives, All ather repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Imvestuwent properties are derecagnised either when they have been dispused of or when they are permanently sitlidrwn (rom use amd ao future economic henefit is expedted from their
dispusal. The difference beiwreen the net disposal proceeds and the cammying amanmt of ther asset 5 recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Though the Company measures investment property using cosl based measurement, i fatr value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are delermined based onan
annual evaluatinn performed by an aceredited external independent valuer.

e} Depreciation
Deprociation is caloulated vn a straight-line basts using the rates arrived sl based on the usefal lves estimated by te management.
Thee wseful lives estimated by the managenent are given helow:

Category of Asset useful life cha_ggl_‘
Investment Property
Buildings* L}
Plant and hachinery 1015
Fil ouls™ 1]
Loasehold Land 99
Praperty, plant and ryuipment
Furpiture and fixtures 19
Computer Equipment i
Office Equipment )

* The Company deprediates builling component af imaestment propedy over 30 years from the date of ariginal purchase, The Company, buased on technical assessment made by technizal
expert and management estimate, depreclates the building over estimated wseful Tives which are different from the seful life prescribed in Schedule U o the Companices Ad, 2013 The
management helieves Uhat these eslimated useful lives are realistic and rellect fair approximation of the period aver which e assets are likely Lo be used.

44 Dopreciation an Gl ouls is provided ever the remaining non-cancellable period or 10 years whichever is Tower,
= Depreciation on Leasehold Land s provided over the lease merivd.

The residual values, useiul lives and methnds of depreciation of property, planl and equipment and investment property are rovipwed ab each financal year emd and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriste.

f) Impainment of assets

{iy MNone ncial Assety
The Company assesses, al eacl reparting date, wihether there is an indication Ul an asset may be impaired. 17 any indicat xisls, or whon annual fmpafrment testing (or an assel is
required, Uhe Company estimates the assel’s recoverable amount, An assel’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less cnsts of disposal
and ity value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual assel, unless the asscel dors nol generale cash influws that are largely indepeadent of these from other assels o
Company's of assels. Where Uhe carrying amount ol an assel oo COU pecreds its recoverabile amount, the assel is considered impaired and i5 wrillen down o ils recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated (uture cash lows are disconmted o their present value using o pre-tes discont rate tat roflects current markel assessments of the tme value of
money and e risks specific t te asset. in determining fair value less costs of dispusal, recent markel transactions dee taken into account, I no such transactions can Te identifivd, an
appropriate valsation model 5 used, These caliulations are corraborated by valwation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companics o ather available fair value indicators.

Tenpainment losses, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, Afler impaimment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset swer its romaining useful life.

(i) Financial Assels (other than at Fair value)
The Company assesses al cach date of Talance sheet whether o linancal asset or a Company of finuncial assuls is impaired, Ind AS 19 requires exproted eredit Josses o by measuned
through o loss allowance, The Company recopnises hifetime expected Tosses for oll conlract assels and / o all trade receivables that di not constitute a financng transaction. For all other
finamial assets, expeced credit losses are measured at an amount egqual Lo the 12-month expected eredit losses or at an amuunk equal Lo Uhe life time oxpedted credit lasses if e credil fisk
an the fimancial asset has increased sipnificantly since mitial recogaition.

N
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Leases

Canmputnf 13 lossor

Leases i which the Company dovs not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of awrership of an assel are assilied as pperaling leases, Rental income Trom operaling Tease is
recognised o a straight-line hasis over U lerm ol Ui relevant lease, unless the lrase agreement explictly states that increase is on account ol flation. Initial direct costs inurred in
negotiating and arcanging an operating lease ane added ta the carrying ameunt of e leased asset and recognised over te lease berm on the same basis as rental income.

Borvowing costs
Burrawing custs directly attributable to the acguisition, constrution o production of an asset that necessarily lakes o substantial period of time to got ready for its ntended use or saleare

capitatised as parl of the (ost of e assel, AlL other boerowing ensts are expensed [n the period in which they ocour. Borrowing costs consist of inlerest and ather coss that an entily incurs
in comneq tion with the borrowing of funds.

Fureign cumrency transactions

Foreign currency Lransactions are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. AL the year end, all the monetary assels and liahilities depominated in forvign
currency are restated at the cosing eschangye rales. Exchange differences resulting from the seitlement of such transactions and from the trashation of such monetary assets and labilities
are rcognised in the statument of profitand loss.

Financial instruments
A finaneial instrument i any conlract tal gives rise toa finandal asset of oo entity and a financial liakility or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assels

Innitian] pocu poitivn and med sursment

All finanuial assels are recogrised initially ot fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded ab fale value teough profit or loss, transaction cosls that ar atbributable ta the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assels that require delivery of assets within a lime (rame established by regukition vr convenlio
way teades} are recopgnised on the rade date, e, the date that the Company commits Lo purchase or sell the asset.

in the market ploce (regular

Subsequent medsurenienl

Fur purpeses of subsequent medsurement, financial assels are classified in four cateporios:

Dbt instruments al amortised cost

Dbl instruments at fair value thrangh other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Dbl instroments, derivatives and eguily i s at Fair vatue through profit or hess (FVTPL}
Equily insteuments measured o fair value through otlier comprebensive income (FVTOCT)

Dbl imstrunments ab amortised cust

A “debt instrunient’ s measured at the amortised cost il hoth the following conditions ane met:

) The asset is held within & business model whose oljeclive is b hold assets fae collevting vontraclual cash ows, and

1) Comtractual torms of e assol give tise on specilied Jates o cash Mows thet are solely payments of principal and interesU{SPPI on the prinuipal amount outstanding.

This vategory is the most relevant W U Company. Aller inlial messurement, such finandal assels are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate {EIR)
method, Amortised cost & caliulaled by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisilion and foes ar costs Uhat are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is included
in finance incame in the profit or loss. The losses arlsing from impairment are recagnised inthe prolitor loss. This calepary pemerally applics to trade and other receivables.

Derecognilion

A financial asset tor, where applivable, & part of a financisl asset or part ol a Campany ol similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:

» The rights to receive cash Mows from the asset have explied, or

» The Company has trans(erred its rights Lo receive cash flows from the asset o has assumed an obligation Lo paey the received vash Mows in full without material delay 103 third parly
under d ‘pass-through’ arcangement; and either () the Company has transforred substantially all the risks and rewards of e assel, or (1) the Company has neither Lransferred nor relained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights 1o receive cash llows from an assel or has enterod into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and o what estent it s retained the risks
andd rewards of ownership, When it has neither transferred nor retsined substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transforred control of the asset, the Company continues Lo
recognise the transferred assel Lo the extent of the Campany’s continuing {nvulvement. In that case, the Company alsn recogises an associated Hability. The transforred assel and the
assoriated Habilily ane measured on o hasis that refleds the rights and abligations that the Company has relained

Financial labilities
Lovitiad rocoymition s pcasuen

Fivancial linhilitio

are classified, at initial recognition, as financial labilitics at fair value through profil or loss, lans and harrowings, or as payables, as appropriate. Al financial Labilities
are recognised inftially al fair value and, in the case of loans wnd borrowings and payables, net of divectly attributable lransaction costs.
The Company’s financial labilities include Lrade and ather pavables and loans and hormowings

Subsequent messurement

The measurement of linancial labilities depends on Ueir classification, as descrihed Tedow:

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relesant to the Company, After initial recognition, internst-hearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured al amorlised vost using the EIR method,
Gains and losses ane revognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are dercognised as well as theough the FIR AMOTisLion process,

Amortised cust is caloulated by taking into sccount any discount or premivem on acquisition and fees or costs Uit are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR awortisativn is induded as finance
Cosls in thee statement of profit and Toss,

iability is denreognised when the abligation under Lhe Tability is discharged or cancelled or wxpires. When an existing linancal liahilily is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different lerms, or the terms af an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition ol the eriginal
Tiability and U recopnition of o new lability, The diffenence in lhe respective varrying amaunts is recognised in lw statement of prafit or loss,

[[ CHA
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a)

Fair value of financial instrunents

I determining the fair value of (s financdal instruoents, the Company uses fllowing hierarchy and assumplions that are based on markel conditions anid rsks existing at each reporting
date.

Fair valur hierarchy:

All assets and liabililies for which fair value is measuned of disclused in the inancial slolements are categartsed within the falr value hierarchy,
Jovel inpit that is significant Lo the fair value measurement ds & whole:

b Level 1 — Quated (umadjusted) markel prices in active markets for identical assels or liabilities

B Level 2 — Valuation techniques forwhich the lowest level input that is signifcant Lo the fair value measurement (s direcly orindirectly phservable

B Lovel 3 = Valuation techniques (o which the lowest level input that i signifivant to Uhe fair value measarement is unohservalbile

For assets and lalilities that ane recogeised in the financial sLtemients ona reourring basis, the Company determines whether transters have occurred bebween Levels in the hicearchy by e
assessing cabegorisation (hased on the lowest level inpul that is sigmificant to U fair vale messurement 4s 4 whala} al e end of each reporting period.

describied as follows, based on e lowest

Income laxes

Crrvenl imeoan: v

Current income tax (o7 the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expeced to be recovered from ar patd Lo the taxatinn authorities hased on the Lxable income fior that
perind. The Lax rates and bax baws used Lo compute the amaunt are these that are enacted or substantively endcted by the Dalance sheet date,

Dgferred tncome lax

Dieferred income s is recoppised using the balance sheet approach, defemed L is recopnized on temporary differences at the Balance sheet date bolwesn the lax hases of assets and
Tiahilitios and their carrying amounts for finandal reperting purposes, excepl when the deferred income tax arises from the initial reengnition of goodwill or an asset ur liability in o
Lransackion Ut is nat o Business combination and alfects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the lransaclion.

Deferred (ncome Lax assets are rocognized for all deductible wmporary differences, carry Forward of unused tx credits snd unused Lax losses, o the extent thal it is probable thal Laxable
profit will be svailahle against which te deductible Lem porary differonices, and the carry forwand of unused Los coedits and unused L Josses can be wlilizd.

It Ui sitwations whene the Company is entitled 10 a tx heliday wnder the Ineome-tax At 1961, no deforrod Lo {sssel ar liability) is revagnized in respect of Uming differences which
reverse during the Lax holiday period, o the extent the Company’s gross tatal income is subject 1o the deduction during the tas holiday periad. Deferned tax in rospect af timing diffennees
which reverse after e tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the Uming dilferences aniginale.

Deferrod income L assets and Habilities are mweasured at the Lax rates that are expected o apply in e period when Lhe asset is realized or the Wabilily is settled, based on tax rates (nd tex
Taves) that Lave been enacted or substantively enacted ab the balance sheet date.

The varcylng amount of deferred income Lax assels is roviowed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the estent that it is no longer probable that suifivient taxable profil will be
available Lo allow all or part of the deferred income Lax assel Lo be utilized. Unrecognised deferred lax assets are re-assessed at cach reporiing il el are recognised (o the extent that it
has become prabable that future Laxable profis will allow the deferred lax assel to be recuvered.

AMiningin Alternnte Tox MAT)

Winimum Allernative Tax (MAT) may become payable when the tasable profil is lower than the book prafit. Tases paid under MAT ane available as a set off against ropular corporale Las
payable in subsequent years, a5 per the provisiens of Lo ax Ack, MAT paid in s year is charged (o the stalement of profit and loss 45 current L, The company recognize MAT credit
availalile as an assel ouly Lo te extent that there i comvincing evidence tal e Company will pay normal income tax during the specilied period, 1., the period for which MAT coedit is
allowed o be carried Toeward. In the year in which the Company recognizes AAT credil a5 an assel, i s created by way of credit 1o the statement of profiland loss and shown s part af
deferred tax assel s "MAT Credit Entitlement®. The company reviewe the “MAT crodil entitleavent” assel of cach reparting date and writes dovwn e assel Lo the extent the campany daes
ot have comvncing evidence thal it will pay nonmal tax during e spevifivd period.

Employee Benelils
Short terna erployes beneits:
Allemployes hone

lling due wholly within bwilve months of rendering the seevices are ca ified as short term employes henefits, which include benefils ke salaries, short Lerm
compensated absences, performance incentives, el and are recopnized a5 expense in e period in which the employee renders the related servive.

Defined-contributian plis:

Thie Company bas defined conteibution plans (whene Company pays pre-defined amounts and dees ol have any lagal o informal obligation to pay additionasl sums) Tor pust employment
henefits (viz., provident fund), and the Company's cantribotions thereto ane chaeged Lo the statenent of profit and oss every year,

Defincd-beaefit phins:

The Company bas a defined henefit plan {viz., Gratuity) [or employees, the liability

for which is determined on the basis of valuation carried out by an independent acluary (under
projecied unit credit method) aL the balance sheel date.

OMlicr lang Fernin canpliyee benefits:

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized wilhin the nest 12 months, i realed a5 short-term employes henefit. The Company measures the expecled cost of such ahsences as the
adeditinnal antount that it expects to pay as 4 result of the unused entithement that has accumulaled at the reparting dale,

R rasurements, vomprising of actuarial gains and losses, U eflfect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net intevest on the net defined benelit liability, are recagnized
e diately Palanee sheel with 4 vornesponding debit or vredit ta retained carings through OCEin the period in which they oecur. Romeasurements are ant reclassified Lo profit o
Toss in subsequent periods.

The Company treats acoumulated Jeave expected to be carrird forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employer benefil for messurement purpases. Such long-term conipensated
absences are provided for based on the aciaarial valustion using the projeced unit creddil method at e year-cnd. The Company presents the entire [eave 45 conent lialilily in the balance

sheet, since it does not luve an usconditional right Lo defer its seillement fue bwolve months after the reparting date. Actuarial gains/ losses are immedistely laken to statement uf profit
and loss aned are not defereed,

Provisi and Contingent Liabiliti

A provision is recopnized when an eoterprise has o prosent obligation (egal or construdtive) us resull of past event and it is prabable that an outilow of embudying economic heneiits of
rosources will be roguired Lo seltle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined hased an best estimate requined (o settle each abligation at each balance sheet date. I the
ot of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using & current pre-tas rale thel relleuts, when appropriate, the rsks specific W the ability, When discounting is
used, the inmrease in the provision due to the passage of lime i5 recognised a5 4 (inance cosl.

A contingent lisbility is a possible abligation thal arlses from past events whose existence will be confiemed by the ovcurrence oF non-ooaimence o one ar more uncertain fulure evenls
beyond the conteol of the Company or o prescet abligation that (5 nol recogiized because it is not prabable that an autflow of resources will be required Lo settle the ahligation. A
contingent Habilily also arises in extremely rare cases whire there s a liability that canmot be recogaized because L cannol be measured reliably, The Company does not recognize 4
contingent liability bt discloses its existence in the financial statements, unless the possibility o { an outllow of resources embodying economic bonetits is remote,

Earmings per Share

Basie carnings per share is caloulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attrbulalile 1o equity sharehildors by the weighted average nimber of eyuity shares sutstanding
during the perind and equity shares Dt will be issued upon the ¢ siom of mandaterily convertible @ s, E s considreed in ascertaining U Company’s eamings per share
i (e met profil for Ue period alter deducting preferenee dividends and any atlributable tax thereta for the period. The woighted average number of equity shares sutstamding during the
period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such os honus shares, ather than the conversion of potential equity shares, that bave changed th
outstanding, withaut a corres punding change in resources.

o number of cquity shares

For the purpose of caloulating Jiluted earnings per share, the net profit or Toss for the period attributable W equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares oulstanding
curing the period is adjusted for the eifedts of all dilutive potential couily shanes.




q) Current versus non-current classification

The Conipany prosents assels and labilities in Uhe balan e sheet based on corrent/ non-cuerent classification. An assel is

Lowsatend as current when it is:

B Expected to be reatised o7 intended 10 be sold or consumed in normal operating cycde

¥ Hold primarily for the purpose of trading

B Expected 10 he realised within lwelve months after the roparting pe rind, or

B Cash o cash eguivalent unless restricted from heing eschanged or used Lo settle a liabilily for at least twelve months afler the repoding period
Al other assets are classificd as non-carrent,

A Liabilily is current when:

B b is expocted to be soiled in noraal oparating cycle

¥ s held primarily foe e purpose of trading

B I is due o be setthed within twelve months after e reporting period, or

» There is no uncondivnal right o defer e settloment of the lability for at least twelve months aller the reporting pertod
The Company cassifies all other Habilities a5 non-cureent.

Dformed Lax assils and abilities are classified s non-comrent dssets aod lishilities.

The operating cyeli is the time between U acquisition of assels for procossing and their realisation in cash and cashequivalents. The Company s identified Lwelve months as its
operating cyecle.

Cash dividend to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognises a liability to make cash disiributions L equily helders of the Company when the distribution Is authorised and the distribution i no longer at the discretion of the
Company. Final dividends on shares are secorded as a liability on the date of app Ly the sharehialders und interim dividends are recorded a5 a Hability on the date of declavation by the
Comypany's Board of Dinectors,

Inventaries
Inventories consist of fuel which are valued ol lower of weighted average cost and neL realizable value which everis lower.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cashamd cash equivalents for the purposes of cash Gow stalement comprise cash at Bank and in hand and short-term deposils with an original maturity of three manths or less, which are
subject taan insignificant risk of changes in value, net of autstinding bank averdralls as ey are considersd an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Hecent pronouncement

£ March 31, 2023, the Ministry of Corporate Affaies (MCA) as natificd Companies (Indian Avcounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, This netificalion has resulted inla
amendments in the following existing accounting standards which are applicable to U Company from April 1, 023
i, lod AS 101 = First time adoption of Ind AS
i hnd AS 102 - Share-based payment
iif, Ind A5 103 - Busingss Combinalions
iv. Ind A5 107 - Financial Tnstrements: Disclosures
v Tnd AS 104 - Finandal Inslruments
vi. Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers
vii. Ind AS | - Presertation of Financial Slatements
viiilnd AS § - Accounting Policics, Changes in Accownting Estimates and Errors
i Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes
% Ind AS 34 - [nterim Financial Reporting
The Company is in Lhe process of evalwating the impact of the above amendments on the Company s financial st ments.
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Maotes ta finacclal statesnents far the year ended hMarch 31,2023

AT amumts e b TEns of Indian Rupees, ondess atherwise stated)

3 Property, plant and equipiment

Campules O Purnitar Total
Farticulars E Pm"" Erpui; i 1 and Fixlu:u
Groas carrying value
e at April o, 2021 L 1548 3348 5546
Aduditions Qe 10467 15 2661
Dsposals () AL ) {0541
Aot March 31, 2022 &19 2637 46,66 #1.52
Additions 1145 - 258 am
Dhsposals Aadjustanonts® T4l ks W73 13540
As at March 31, 2083 Pk} 15.61 14597 prl 81
Depreciation
Asat Ap(“ in, 00 pEirl 1L78 4.0 Ax09
Charge for e year 221 236 261 741
Disposials (g 1118 10008y 0.29)
s al March 31, 2007 125 1416 3040 L g
Charge lor e year .l | A3 237 am
Drisposals sl uslments 19041 g2z .71 13561
As al Mareh 31, 2023 2616 3674 129,50 19282
et block
As al Marely 31, 2022 424 1222 1586 ann
As at March 31, 2023 233 889 16.07 TH
TNotes:

* The Managemient, during the year revicewed the gross block aned aceumulatid dupreci atinn gcres various classes of assetd and canred out adjustinents ameoenling by R 135 A millioos The
i | o (e ek bock valie a5 a peanltof e satd adpistmants is Pl

1 Tawestment properiy

Tacticnlars Leasehald land Land Buildings Flant and Machinery Fitouls Total
Gross carrying vahue

Asal April 01, 2001 630.99 171K TASLIL 1,086.51 5647 810707
Additions E s i i 13043
Dispesaili/ajustnts - = (122.41) (183} (448 |155.52)
As at March 31, 2022 630,89 17200 FAILNL 1,113.20 5170 9,078.95
Aduditions - - EELLR B2 12132 . 522256
Drispesals fud jus | men s 2 ; {L0AT) ETEREY 115 ARASH
As al March 31, 2003 630,93 17200 1111093 2,601.75 1445 1169052
Depreciation

Asal April 0, 2021 2578 - L435.77 39209 2330 157995
g for the yeaar %] - aam T Lred ATLE
Diispeeals) adjustments = - (12241 13145 (440) {15852)
As at Mareh 31, 2022 35H - 1,702.37 d28349 i} 219295
Charge for e year [N 43745 14308 131 59348
Dispomals fudpstments* - - (LU M7 B0 w2l
Adfustments - FLUET)] A #4565 39256
IHspsals = - - () {1.27) (1.33)
A at Manch 31, 2023 4136 * 21E992 B590.62 11575 317765
Tnitial direct costs Iveurred in neg ing and Alig an aperating lesse

Asat March 31, 2022 7252
As ab March 31, 2023 12532
et block

Asab March 31, 2002 595.85 17200 540773 H5LAL .61 6,058.51
Asat March 31, 2023 58963 17200 598100 1,751.13 19.10 1163819
Nuoles:

Irvestiient propecty wilh el bleck of Rs, 507791 (March 31, 022 Bs 533608 Jocarted 1 Punc is suljot o fisstand e husive charge in e of debeature trustes, as per debemun:
subscriptine and inber s agresatent to sseuns the noncomven bl debeontunes. Also eler ook 13

= Tl Masagerrent, during the vear reviewed the gross block and ac inubatend doprecialion aeross varios asses of assets and carred outadpastments aniouiting b e 39250 mitlion, Thw
impact e the et boak value as 2 sl of the said adjustments s Nl

CHARNERED
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e able properties not held in the name of the Company.

Whether Lila deed
holder is a promotar,|

Relavant lina item In Balance Deseription of | Gross Valua (5. in | Title deed nelain | 9727107 ‘:‘,’e"“""‘ Praperty held since hzﬁ::““l'l::'n::: balng,
sheet property millions) tenmame o | ockare sdirector which data mmp“:
or employes of
Joirector

Loasehold Land As oper Anmlgamation

Located ot Hivgevead: Ordor issued by Matlonad)

Village, Taluka Conypany Law Tritunal

dulehi, Panwe District Hyilerabad, The whole off

nieasuring 10176 e property, mghts and

hectares, a0 FDPL Private Limited Mo | of e lapsiony

Company e tranaferred)

withoul any furthir acl or]
donl n Lransfore|

[ Conpany .
Tnvestment Property
Frechold Land [ocated As per the order daled Oct)
at Madhapur Village, 18, A5 peceivad  from
Seeri ingmpally 17243} e strar of companivs
Mandal, Rangaredidy nanie of the Company has
District, Hychrahad V.mﬂdm.ly.!] Park 25 Aprall bevr «lmnn:-\l fromi
measaning &% 54760 Put Limited Waneaburg 1T Park Pul
and 24,2005 Yanls. Limitesd® 1 VITP Privat]
172 ey Lirmited.

Informiation regarding income and expenditure of inveatisent property

Pisitculics For the Year Fuded For the Year Ended
March 31, 2013 Sarch 31, 2022

Rt ] i e dirved frem investment projpeclivs 2301 2176
Dimect operaling expenses (inclding repair anid maintenance] gererating nontal income {460.63) (150
Diirect aprating experses (incduding repaies and mainlenancel nol peasraiig renlal i o (IR K] {934
Profit aristag from & properties before depreciation and Indirect exp 1,840.05 1,759.93
L Doprovtation ol imeesiient propertios (59048} (47158
Profil arising from investient propesties before fndirect expenses 1,246.57 1,288.40
The managenicnt Las delermined that the propertics onsist of o «Lesses of assels - office and retail- based on the natuee, chuara teristics and risks of each property

As al March 31, 2023 and Man 31, 2022, the fair values of the propesties (incduding Invstinenl propery nder construg o) are Bs 35962 fas por valustion report dated December 3,
2022) and R, V2457 {3 per valuation report dated Decesnber 3, 201) repectively. Thee valuations an based on vahwations | joeicd by indepesdont ouornal valuer, wamely- CBRE
South Asia Pt L who specialise in valuing e (s of fnvestnent propertics amt ape aat registerad valiers as defimad wnder rule 2 of the Compuzics (Registored Valuers and
Waluation) Fules, 2017

The fair vabue af ivestiwnt propetivs Is primarly based on average of fair valuis s dlscomntid cashflow methad (RCMY and moome capltalization method (MY and cassified as
Yool i el e i b fair value hiorarchy due 1o the use ol unubservable mpula. There has Lt a0 clannge in valmalion bech nigques wsed 5060 poor yoaes.
Futir vabue Liran Iy for et praperties Rave oo provides] n nabe 5.

D ten of valuati | used and key inputs tu valuation ou @ propertics:
Tnuealinent proportics Key inpuls For the Year Fnded For tha Year Ended
Nlarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Ofiwce propertics Eatimated monthly rental ped T 45 R td
Tt growtly rate 477N
Vesaney rate 150%
Ditsonnt rates or complelad Uiildings 1.5
Discount rale for urlerconstiulon boildings TRAN%- 1348%
Capitalisativn rate 50 R
Rustail peospaerlies Estim atedd monthly rental psf R od- [ 74 s Tunl
Bent growwlh ate

s

Vawaey rabe
Distount rabie: foc complitid buil dings
Discount rate- for underco nsticution buildngs
Capntalisation rale A5

Ty oo Cagilalization Method, an overll capiiliztion rate i applicd o o representative gl period fncone to argive at the value of the subject property. I Disgoumted Cashilow

Method, a discount rate is applied 0. series of cash Bows foe fatur perlods to Jiscount Ut by arsive ol e present valuo of the subject propedy.

5 propesty wider d 7
Wi Investment property undes
developuent
As at April 1, 02 - 156225
Additivms - 154945
Capitalised during the year = (ST
Acs ol March 31, 2022 - 295069
Adddibions (sulsoqent expendisun) A 284113
Capitallsed during the year (03 (3.222.5)
A at March 31, 2003 - 573.26
51 Tnwestment property under development Ageing Schodule
As at 31 March 2023
Austoant in Tnvestment property under development for a periad af
Parbicul, Tatal
s Less than 1 Year i 12 Yeus 2-3Years Mara than 3 Years G
Frojos s I progros 12801 | 1986 T4 [y 57328
[Total 123,61 | 19.86 L 21m 57328
A al 31 Mareh 2022;
At by Twestaent property under develapmant fur a peiiod of
Dasticulars Total
Liss than 1 Year 1= 2 ¥ears 2-3Years More than 3 Years
Projpts in propgess 148303 S X668 Tiise
| Total 148203 1AM 23366 FLAS6
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VITP Private Limited

CIN: UF2200TGI997PTCO26500

Notes to financial ctatements for the year ended March 31, 2023

A it ane i mulons of Indlan Rupses, unles olliorsise stabed)

& Financial asseis

Man- carrent Cuarrenl
Particulars Asat Asal Asal Asar
arch 31, 2023 Blarch 1, 2022 March 31, 3 Blarch 31, 2023
A, lnvesinenls
¢ ) at ised cost
Unguoted debl securities
Pl (Merch 1, 022 8,600) pua-converible e nies of B 100000 wacks fully paid up in LOMA Co-Develspess 1 - LN - =
Private Litnited [Fellow sulsidkary)- Jaeier mate (3]
5,330 (March ¥, 2022 5330 nen-convertible debentures of Re 100000 va b fulty paid up i LORA So-Developers EAREEY 53300 -

2 Private Limited « frefer ke 4]
40000 (RLarch 3T, 2023 LK) poneconveriible debenturcs of Feud vadi fully puid upoin Apes Urban - A Ao *
Infrastruc e Private Limbed (Provicusly known Phocpis Urban Infrosiruciuee Fuivata Limited) « [reter note (il

L7210 (March ¥1, 3022 17,058,210 pn-convertible dobontures of R 100 e flly pand ap in Fhoons Tndolly H45,0 | Pt Rt [ IR )

Private Limnited - frefer note (iv)]

430,000 (March 3, 02% ANLOKIY noeonverible debentures of Ra i cach fully paid up in Placiis Iniraspuece (ST FETLL % -
Tinidka Priviate Linited - [refer note (v)]

F20,000 (A anel 3, W2 A1) non-convestibh debeniuns: of Re 400w b fully pand up in Pheen nfrasofl Tl 51001 500 .

Private Lieuited - frefor note {vi}|

Rl (March 1, 2022 2700y noncenvetible dobontures of B5 100,000 ek fully paid up i Chegalpatie - T g :
Warchousing Parks Private Limited - frefer note (il

B (Aandy M, 2002 L901786) non-converbble debentures of B 100 each fully paid up m Avance Technel b - AHL1E - -
Private Lisitd (Fallone subwidiory) (formerly fnown as Phoenic IT Infrastrabuse fnlia Privabe Linited) - fnefor

node (vl

SONN (Marh 31, 2002 300,000) non-cvenverlible deleatures of R 100 cach fully paid up in Hebbal Inlrspao: 000 00K - -
Private Limited - [refae nate (ix)]

Nl (Mo 31, 022 3000] vt convertibhe debontures of Rs 00000 each fully paid up in Chunpgalpatia Logistics - Y - -

Panks Private Limited(Fellow subsidiary) - [refer nule (1]

Unguoled equily shares
200 (March 31, 2022: 300) waquity shares of Bs, W0 each fully poid i Capitaland Hope Foundation India (fomery i a1 . -
Eaowit a5 Asconadas Gives Foumdation)

Unguated government securitios

lativnal savings certilicale [ nul * =
112392 4,138.02 1,663.92 =
Aggregate amounl of quotind mvelients = =% = =
A e walu e of o 1} 112292 143d02 Tondil -
Mom- cument Current
B Loans ab amortised cest Asat Asa Asal Asat
March 31, 2023 Alarcls 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 Alarch 31, 2033

Untserared, considured good - Jeber nule (i) b gair]] 1aZi 1,932.0M1 L300 EETICY
Tatal 162700 1,932.00 139500 590,00

Malas:

{1 LOMA Ce-Developers 1| Private Linvited ('Loma 1) Mon convertible dobestums (NEDS) ane issued al por and are redeemable aftor 30 years at par. MCDs cany inferest ot 11255 pa. MCDs of Loma 1
Lssted e wnsecured bt carry () G and ewlusive charge of e margaged properties by favour af e Debentuns st (it a pledgge oo all e Shares el by (he Bxisting Sharchldors in Loma 1 in
farvonir o4 the Debentare Trustee, (] 4 corparate guarntes from Ausum for thi Debeture Repaymimi, in favour of the Debenture Trustee and () Coupon Answnt for a period of 2 {wa) quarters,
withled by cach of the Investors {for the benelit ol bt re halders) has been createad. The sawe has boen pedeeimed it cuerenl pear,

{11y LOMA Co-Davelapers 2 Private Limited (Loma 2} NCD: an tszued at g and ane wedvemabhe after 5 years al pan C D5 capry dntervst al 11.25% pa. NCDs of Loma 2 ssied apt unsecutnd bl (i) a
pari padsy firstand esclusive cunge of te morgaged propesties i favvowr of U Deborturs trustee, (i} a pledge oo all the Shares Bld by te Existing Shareholdors i Loma 2 in Fuvour of the Debsntuse
Trustee, (i) a corporate puasantee (oo Aurim feor e Dhcberistes Repayment, in favour of e Delbwnture Truste: and (1) Contpon Ameunt for a perbod of 2 {Lwak quarters, withhcld by each of he
Trvvestars (et e bene(is of Gebenture holders) s Teen created.

(i) Apex Urban lifrastructure Peivate Limited (Previously know an [haenls Urban Infrasimchuce Private Limited) PAUPLY: MCDs of AUPL are lssuad al par and are redeemalie after 30 yodes al par
NCDs of AUPL atrounting b Re. 1000 carry mtorest al 1125%p oo, (1350% il Septenibes 3, 2005 and 1375% il Tath Febrary 221}, NCDs ane wnsscuned but carry (i) first and park passu crange of G
melgaged propertivs in favour of te Delwature stes, il {i7) pledge ot all the AUPL pledged shanss proposed 1o be aajuired by AUPL in PIFL, i favour of debwnlue: traslee. The same wiks repald
subseuently om Slay 02, 2023,

{Iv] Phoenix Infocity Private Linited (PIPLY MODs of PIPL are asstod at par i are redeenable afler 1 years ot pan MCDs of BIPL amoun ling lo R 454 87 million carry interestal 1250 % pa (13045%
tilk Seprernber 30, 2018 anal 135455 1L VAl Febrrary 20210 MCDs of PIPL anoanting b s 500 million carry interest ol 12.25%pa, {1350% Hill Se plesnbeer WL ATIR anad 1375% Gl 1A Felbruary 2021}
MOD of PIPL amounting to R 250 million carry inferest 31 12.25%pa. NCDs issuad ane umnee ured but carey () st and pari passu charge of the morlgaged propertics in favonr o the Debenture
st it & phodige an all e Shares liebd Ly prom + PIPL 1 favorsr of Ui Debenture Trustee, (] pledge on all the AUPL pledged shanss propuad to be acquined by AUPL in PIPL, I favour of
Adebeniure trustea and (iv) corporate guarantes from PIPL for ibe Celenturs Repuyment, i tavour of the Debenture Trisle {ior the bepwtit of debenture holders) has been created. The NCTs amoeanting
ho s 1,260,972 puillion was repuid subeequen iy on Blay (12 2023

(v} Phoenis Infraspace Lndla Private Limiled [PIPLE NCDS of PIPL are ssurd a1 par and are padcemable after 30 years al pur. NEDs af PP carry interest at 1350% pa. MCDs of PHPL baued are
unsecured but carey (1) first and exclusve charge of the morlgaged properles I Faver of the Dvkentune lastes, (i 2 plodge on all the Shares of PIPL 0 favour of the Debentuns Trustow amd {iiij 2
vorparale guarantee from Phoonis Infratin b {lisdiad Private Limited for e Debenture e pay men, i favnur af the Debenture Trustoe (for the bene Lot debenture holders) has been created.

Interest amount shall gurse from o funding date antil the end of the 1t month and shll e due fram the Vth mosth.

(vil Phooniy Infrasoft lndia Private Linited {'PULT: MEDs of PHL are issued ol por and are rodeenuabde after 30 yoars ab par. NCDs of PIIL carry interest at [330% poa FCDs of PUL isanedd are unsecured
bt carry () first wrnd evclusive dharge of te el el propertics in favooe o the Debenture trusies, (@) & pledge onall the Shares of PHL in favour of e Dubentuss Trustes wnd (i) o corporabe
puaragice (rom Phoeni Infratech (Inadia) Peavate Limiwed fon the Debsnture Repaymenl, in favinte of e Debenture Trostes (for the benefitof debenture holders) it b createdd,

Irborest anount shall scorae from the fanding date until the cand of the 181 nonth asd shall be due from the 19th month.

(vii) Chengalpatty Warehnusing Farks Private Limited (CWPPLE: NCDs of CWPPL are rssuvd al par and are rodvosiable after 30 years al par. NCDs of CWPPL carry inloresl s 11% pra NCDs of CWRPL
Lssyed are wnsecured bulcarey (i) st and exchusive chanse of the avsrtgaged propedivs in faveur of the Debonture tustes, (i) Pledge ol 100% shares feld by exlsting share hobders of Barrser u favour
of Dvbentare Trusto (il fest canking eharge by way of Hypothecation over all nceivaliles of berrower and i) Persopal Guaramtee of each promeders for e Delature pegayients, i lavour af e
Ciokonture toustes, Thie same has been redeemed i the aurment year

{ul) Avance Technohub Private Linited (ATPL) [farmerly hivown as Phoeix 1T lnfrastructare Tudia Private Limited]: MCDs of ATPL are issaed al par arul ate tedornable after 30 years ab pan NEDs o
ATPL carry intorest 2l 12 M%pa (T2500% 1l 3t Auguat 2021 and 123135 W1 1Ath Fobouary 2001 NOTH of ATEL sswed o wisecuned bk carny (4 First and pari passu charge of e morigaped
praperties in favost of the Debenture tustee, (i) a pledge on all the Shares hubd by pronabes i PIPL in favaur of the Debenture Trustes, (i) pledge ci all the AUPL pledped shares proposed to be
ausquired by AUPL in PIPL, [ favour of defen e s and (1) corporaie puatintee froum PLPL fox e Derenture Repayment, in favoue of te Debentuns Trostee (fer the benefit of dobentune Lieeler i<
T Teeem eredted. The same hus Beon redeemed in the current year.

{ix) Hebbal Infraspace Pyt Lud (HIFPLY: BCDs of HIFL are issucd at par anal are rodeceable ffor 79060 years ol par, KOBs of HIFL carry interost at 1150% poa NCDs of HIPL issued ane unsceured bubarey
{1} first pani-passu charge o e Froje Lanl anel Projev i favour of e Debontuns dros e Ty weay of mowty e by depestl of ke deeds, (i) flrsk pari-pussu Charge o the Project 2 Land dnd Project 2in
Favouir of the Seaurily trustee by way of motgage by deposit of fitle deeds, i) @ vorpardte guarantoe trom Gardenwity, (] Personal guaraniee G Promater 1, () Pari-passu pledge on 100% af the
aluaris Il by Gandenaity aned Promotes T i the Boreaver in favour of the Dubentur ruse.




(s} Chengalpateu Logisties Parks Put Lid (CLIPLE NCDs o CLPPL ane tssued ab por and ans sedesiable after 0 years ab par. MEDs of CLPPL corry interestal 11% pra. NCDs ol CLPPL issued e sevured
Loy 4y tirst charge on the vt e propesties i frvonr af the Debonture Liustes, (i) pledge oo 104 shares Bebd by existing shugeholdees in e bogower m Evsoue of Dobenture tustes, (i} o hest
ranking charge by way of hypatliecation over all the reovivabies o the Profect and Projnt 2 i favour of Deleniune fasie fiv) Perscnal guarantie Trom ach of e Promotes. The s los (]
rechecmed i the curee Rt yoar.

(o) Apes Urlan Infrastruc bure Private Limited (Previoasly knaw an Phoenic Urban Tnfrastraciore Private Limfted ) ('AUPLS: Thee Conpany has inwestod in il orparsbe depusiLod AUPL aniouniing
Re. 205 milllion on March 02, 2121, The faan 15 ropayabile on Marh a1, 051 anid carries interest rate of 13,755 pa. until june 2020 and 1300% pa thereattor prutesd oy a quarledly comy 2 basis.
The inberet i payalle witlin 5 days from Gwe ond of vachygeatter.

Thhe loan s wnsecurcd bt carry a [ st charge b G project lasd and buildings of AUPL (11) firsl charge on the riphits of Phownie Infratech [ndia Private Limited o Ui projest Land anl linbding (i} a
fieat and part passd by way of hypotheration end escrow of all the peosivables and charge on e land and buildings of AUPL, Phomis Ventures Private Limited {EVPLY Phoenic bilrasgace India
Private Limited (PUPLY, Phowais Infrasoll Pravate Limited CPIPLY and Phownis Technalul Private Limtted (PTHPLY {iv} pledpe v shanes of AUPL PILEPL, PYPL, PIPL and PTHPL {v) corporate
puaranted o Flenis Infraspace L Provale Limated and Phoosis Tedmehub Private Laited. The same was wepaid su Lsaguently on hlay 02, 2020

i) Phoenix Technohalb Private Limited (PTHIPL]: The Compuanty s ivesid in intecorporate deposit of Lo FTEL anownting Lo Bs. 930 million on February 21, 2021 and e 100 millice oo Marhin,
2027, The boan I tepayabile cn Septembes U, 2022 and Septembar 20, 020 10 pet by and canries interest rite of 1075% po computed on a gquarerdy compounding basis, The inlerest bs payabile withn
5 days froan e ond of vach guaiter,

The aan i5 unsecred bat carey (1 fiesLand pari passa carge by way o oquitable s tga e on Lanad ine luding, deselopiient and enepers i righits asd ather rights aned berielits i faverur of seounly
trustees {11} 0 st andd et passu charge by way of hypotheliation on recoritlos, borrowor's ssorow accoml and all amounts credited [ deposited thoreinand sl investments in spact thereol, plodgs
oy all L PTHPL aned Phcents Infratech tindia Private Linobed CPHIPLY pledged shames i favour of se frwtes (i} erppoeate guaranive fron FHPL Fio the hoan e pay ment i favour of security

st
(xiif) Phaenix Ventures Private Limited [PV PL: The Compuany has tmwvsted in stercocperate dopoait of PTPL g, Lo s, 1,627 nillion on March 02, 2021, The loat is repayalibe cn August 31, 2024
and carrics inberest ateof 1R753% o, compuled 00 quarterly comy in; bnsis The inkberest i payable within 5 days from the end of each gquarter.

Tho toan 15 wmsecwred but carcy (i) fiestand por pasau charge en te Land, Toushl Sy, enwivershign feadeiohd and dovelopment rights, caash Bows amud Fiture receivables of Plhiouni Vantuees Privale
Lirnited, Bhigenix Todmokiub Private Linited, Phoenis nfraspace Private Limibed, Phoense |ifrasolt Private Limited in faeour of security trustee (1) pledge on shares held by promotes in Pheenis
techinehuls private limied and Phoenss Ventures Privale Lirrited in favour of svcurily st (i} corpere g uaeaniee fron Fleeni Tuclinuhub Private Limated and Fhovmis lfeatel Tndia Private
Linited in favour of secarity Liustes,

. Otlier financial assets {Unsecured, considersd good unless stated otherwise)

Moo currenl Current
Asaf Asat Asal Asat
Fasliitats March 31,2023 March 31,2003 Marel 31,7023 March 31,2022
Daepomits roveived [rom Custonsees 10HLES 6633 - .
Uinnbllid Pevenue - - 3566 AT |
Bterest sucrunl oo depuosils - - 4188 185
Toborost accroed om invealisients - - 13125 1,508
Ity resbaccrued on ludiis - - THA2 43648
Total ‘{22.35 46,33 2,366.72 202485
7 Oiher bank balances

. Asat Asat
Lt March 31,2023 Manch 31,2002
Margin msny deposit* [T 518
Tatal 1803 518

* Held as It against bank guaranices

&  Mon-cument tax assols {net)

Asan Asal
Pansialart March 31,2003 March 31,2022
Mom Carrent Tas (Advance iwome B [netof ekl 55150
ol R 1.540.4% il March 31, 20232
1M A4S million)
Telal #7491 55150
9 Other assets {Unsecared, constidered good nnless stated otherwise)
Mo- current Currem
: Agat As al Asal Asal
L March31,2023  March 31, 2022 March 51,3023 March 31, 7022
Capital advances A3 TNEY - -
Prepaid espensis 143 5 BT azs
Rent bree poriesd amertization 510w Eril] 5456
Balanavs willy statulory J goveriment sutionties N 36781 R
Advanie ba Vinidars - - 351
Tatal 35591 75185 76,10
10 Tnventories {valied at lawer of cost and et realicable value}
- Asal Asal
r.
'articubars Alarch 31, 2023
Storvs, sparos and fuel 713 F
713 = T.00
11 Trade receivaliles
= Asat Asal
0
Partipufars Aarch 11,2028 March 31, 022
Secnned, Conablered goonl
D froan ebitend partics =
Dlupe from others 409 18840
Unseourad, Consklerd pomd
Pe froan rvlated pories . [IRF]
e fram others ~
Fetelvables - credil impaired
Dhie Frown othiees 1.35 1.
561 oM
Liss Proasion for doubstiu] dobes {1.35) (]
Tutkal 1129 1894

Mo trade or oller reveivable are due from directers or slwer officers of e conpang wither severally or pintly with any alber paoson, Morany trade o el rovebeabde ane due Trom firms or prvate
companics tespectively inwbdch any divector s a pariner, 4 divevior vra memier.
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Ageing Schedule of Trade Receivables;

As at March 31, 2023;

[ Cuts tanding far fallawing periods from dug date af pay ment
Particulars
Not Due Lecsthan 6 honthe| 6 Months a1 Year]  1-2Vesss | 2-3Vears [ Store than 3 vears | Tanl
1) Undisputed Trade avables - il 170 204 .30 fAn 1652 w7 24.2%

poend

it} Undisputed Trade Beceivable - wikh have - -

afgiifant i rease in it sk

i) Undisputed  Trado Rewelvables - credit 15 - it nE6 135
imspained

tiv) Dispatid Trade Revivaliles-constidired good . . =

(v} Dopited Trade Recervables whith have - - 5 2
significan | inrease i ceodit risk
[vi) Disputed Trnde Reeivablos - cnedit impaired -

Total 476 200 010 040 16,97 133 15.64

As at March 31, 202%;

[ Crutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars
| NorDue Tews thar & Momths | & Momthaso 1 esr]  1-2Vesrs | 2-3Years | MoethandYears Totl
i) Undisputed Trade seceivables - wonsil el 261 1534 - aal el 0 13491
mood
(] Undispated Trade Reeivables - which have = =
igrificant inerease o ceedibrisk
(i} Undspated Trade Receivables - wrodit - i WL LW A7 v 130
impained
(i) Dhspubed Trade Receivables-consl derd good a - - =
(4} Desputed Trade Feovivables - which T H - = =
sipmificant increase in crodit risk
{vi) Disparbed Trade Reveivables - credit lanrpabredd - - . - -
“Tolal 261 1539 009 016 130 0.69 2024
Cash & cash equivalenis
Asal Asat
e iine March 11,2020 Aarch 31,200
Cash cn hand = -
Balanoes with Bank
- O currenl aseoants Aad a5
- Qi dopusit aueonts’ 1,602.00 589,31
Tulal 1,&5«-65 49236
Share capital
Asat Asat
Particulars Blarch 31, 2023 Plarch 31, 2022

Authorised share capinal
12,100,000  Mar by ¥, 20222 12,100,000) vquity shans of Bs. Ml eph L2100 1,210
000,000 ¢ harch 31, 2022 3,000,000 1% fully convertrlth cumalative puwfirenos shans of B 10 cach

LT 3
Tesued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capiial
10,559,824 (March 3, 2022 10,389,524 equity shares of Rs. 100 cach 105858 1,038,958
Total 1,058.98 1,155.98
ay Hiation of the sh ding at the Leginning and at the end of the reporting year
Exquity shares
Parficulizs Asak Asal

March 31, 2023 blarch 31, 2022
Mumber Amaunt Neo. Aot

A the bogy st of b year L589.821 IERE [ITEC-E 1, 05898
Blawenw | during the year - = - 2
Oulstanding at the end of the year 10,589,324 1,058,958 10,589,414 1,055.98

) Termyfright attached to shares

Equity shares:

The compaenyt hus cae cla44 of equity shares having a par sl of Rs, 10 por share, Bl sharslwilder is eligibde for one vole per share Teld, T divideid proposesd, if any, by the Beard of Dirctors &
subsject L e approval of the shateholdors s wns g Arnmal Gene ral hecling.

Ty e event ot Tiguidaluon of the company, the holders of equity shenes will b rmtitled 1o recoive remsink assels of the compang, atter distrivution of a1l preferential amwints. Thie distebution will Lein
prapartion t e number of equity shates held by G sharholdees

« Shares held by holding company
Chilof couity shars issued by Wi Conprany, shares hedd by its holding company are a5 ol fony a:

Partieulars Anat A3 48

March 31, 2023 March 11, 2022
Ascennas Property Fusd (lndiay Ple Limited, the helding company
10,385,816 {March 31, 2007 10,359.8161 vquity shaws of e, Tk vk 1115652 10,584.82
Total 10,589.82 10,559.82
d) Details of shareholdess holding more than 584 shames In tle Company

= Asat Asat

Mlarch 31,2023 March 31,2022
Hame of the sharehold, Mo, Anount MNa. Amouwnt
Equity shares
Ascondas Property Fund (i) Ple Liniled, the holding o pany. 10,559 410 i ) 1,389,410 99.949%

GHARTERED

AGGD NTANTS
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«) Shares held by Pramaters
As 2t 31 March 1023

Mo of shares at the L
o
[FE——— class of equity Ueginning of the change during the Noof shares at the o af wotal shares 4 change during the
shares year year end af the year year
Agormdas Froperty Funnd (Inadial Pl Lisbed Exquity hares of Bs. W, 5H9.A1R - 10,359 816 $399% s
10 Eavh
Ascendas Property Fund Teostes Pie Lid Eauity shares of R & - & N
1 Each
As a3 March 2072
Hoal chares at the A
i
Pra P tlass of equity beginning of the change duringthe Noofsharesatthe ooy e change during the
shares ear year end of e year ear
siendis Property Fuid (indi) P Linted Eaguity shares of Rs 0,589,810 = 0,559,810 P 2
10 Endy
Ascenddas Property Fund Trustee Ple Lid Exquity shares of Rs E) . & D015 =
i Eacly
Oither equiity
Panticulas Hrab Aaa)
Alarch 11, 3023 Mlarch 31, 2032

Capital redemption reserve

Mach 11,2083  BICH SR SRS

Balonere as at the begineisg of e year 17dH 178,99
Ak Movement during the year - .
Cloming, ba o 175.94 1784
Delenture redemption reseve
Balanws as al he beginming of the year 13883 16615
Add: Movenent during, Qie year 447 6143
Closing babiner 29349 22563
General reserve
Batance as 2t the beginning of Hie year 1701 1704
Adds Movemwnt during the year - &
Chewsing, balanoe 1704 170
Harplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balanae s at te beginning of he year 26171 31757
Adul Totsl conprehensive o fon the year 4 dls 16262
Less: Appropeiathuns
Transfer Lo debenbure redempion resenvs (6137 A7)
Clasing bakince 3,005.90 25071
Total Other equity 351538 31483
Distelbution made and proposed
The Company has not made any distribution of div|deid o pasposed any divadvind far the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 3L, 2022,
Delenture pade mplion reserve
Drebwnture redemplion peserva fepresenls naerie o sealed ol of frow reserves with wespech bo redvemahis dobeniures
Capital redemplion reserve
Capital redemplion reserve meatd out of frvw eserves pursnant o by back of is ow i equity shores.
Financial Liahilities
Effective interest Asal Asar
L (4 1
TR te (Average) vty March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2033
A Mon-current bormowings
Unsecured:
2,508 (March 3, 2022 153Y) Listed, ral i, g and ke el off R, 1,000,000 sadh 15.64% . 253300
[refer nate (1]
2838 (March 31, 2002 3838) Unseoueed and wenn pulsory converiible debentures of B TOMLKN dach [rofer el 11.93% OG- ITHY ARMM0 A8
Gl
e, arch 31, 2022 stiad, vl Lk, Umsee ke stebentres of Rs. 100
MM Na al, 22 Lty AT mall B 1200% 10m 330000 13K
wachy fretor nele (k)]
00,000 {hdarch 31, 20220 100003 Redermuabbe, unsecuned and non-comvertible debentuees of Bs. 10 vach [refer 1200% 208 0 Vo
ek (]
lntercorparale wbeposits Jrofer nobe (il s W37 am
Secured:
2,000 (March 31, H022: 2,000y son convertilie reeeniable debentures of B 1,000,000 each frefor nole 0]} 3% 2024 2,004,37 1,946 1
Leas disclosed under cumrent bonmowligs (LRI
Total 11,675.37 1245744
B. Current Borrowings
Unsecured:
25,0000 (Manh 31, 2022 M) Redeenalle, £ annd penconvertible debontures of Bs 1o each [refer note =
(i) 12.00% 20238 pERUY
l,f\'lrﬂ.)ﬂ (Marsh 31, 20220 W Epdoemable, 1 and pom il 1ol of Ra WK1 cach frefen 1200% Ay o000
ks ib))
-
35000 -




A

(i)

b}

fie)

(i}

i)

(v} Secured debentures: T Company s tssued 2000 redeemable, o converlible debentiires (NODs) of Re. 1000000 vack 1o Ascendas 1T 1,

=

Nates
U ar {Mon 1e deb

k The Company has teued Lstd, 1
[“Debenture Holder) of Rs, 1003000 vach in Lwa tranhes, writle Une First irancde cunsiibubing «

apgrepating o b 2338 NCDS of Bs. 2,533 million which carry an interest rato of 1H.25% (o Jusly
oy March 31, 2022 shall be payable with 4 perival 12 years and 11 months from the dats
e i sal year W21-22 intorest pay el lerans were amended and imtezest pagable upta Match 2023 will be dus

nabli, & el N

Conmpany an the Debeture Holder. All e subsispent interest payment siall be on “pay whin sble Tasis.

The fermy of vach debenbare shall be thirty pears fom e date of isste,

The Company b

u d Dt (Nan ™

The term of cach delwniure shall be Len years fran D date of Bsue, however the Company b,
expiey o the e of (hirky years: AU U Lime of redemption of e delontures, the Compusny niay.

Thir Coseriparny hiss rsucd Tsted, redeemaldo, wscuied
10 waxky, agpvpating bo Y3 (XKL NE DS of B, 3,300 million whih vary an inborest rale of 12
funids amd as ducided by Bard of Directies of the Compuiy. Dusing the finsncial yeor 2021-22 terest pay me
Soptmber 15, 3073 ar anyother nituslly agreed dabe bty Ure Company amd lhe Debentare Holder, Al the

Towever the Company fas an aptisn to pedeem the debentures o paet of full, at any i
expliy of the termol thisky years. AL e tme of edumnpiion of e debsentures, the Company may,

sppntied 85, T Teusteeship Serviees Limied as Dlebentuire trustes inmespect of the absave listed debentuies.

The Company hagappented s 18] Trestoship Servioes Lienibed as Doloniure trustes imespect of e abave listed debetuns.

Dk {Non ikl

able® lasis.

The term of vech debonture shall be ten yoars fron the date of ssue W IR an eption o prepaymek. P

ElEL}

A0 ™ ible deb

fends and as decided by Bosnd of Cicectors of the Ceapany.

The e of each detentine shall be ten years from B date of tssue with an opticn of pre

2N
4 Drel i 1 bl dol

L0000 iy b seven tnanches, with the el tranche consituti
CCDs on January 20, 2049, the foudl

il The Cisnpany has s e
Ascondas Propurty Fund (FOF Pre Limited an January 21, 2021 which carry an
Enterest Based co avalability of funds and as decided by Board of Divectors of the Company. During
20123 wll b due fur payment on Soptenther 15, 203 or any alher mutuslly appeed date between the Company and the Delentun

§ The Company
500 1068 OC Dy on
e he constituting of 93 CCDs on Foboary 11,
Aprl 26, 2019 and the soventh tranche constituting of 123 CCDs an June 03, 2013 4y e,
COD af Be 2405 million carry an inferest male of T20% . For frst two yoars f1om the

[l e Tho Company has isued 25,0000 red ve mable, L anid e o
Ascoridas Property Funad (FDI Ple Limited on Apail 26, 2022, swrluich canry an interest nale af 12% per annui. As per i Berms o thur agreenient L

L INCDR) Lo Ascomdas Property Fund (FOI Fle Linitod
65 MCTs on January 27, 307, the secomd tranche conatiliting of 165 MEDs on Febroaey 10, 2017
U1, 202 iterest rate ot 5% pak As per B lenms of agrecment inlerest for (e period April 01, 2018
wi axcrual Sulsequently e interest shall b payabhe within May 300 of the susequnt finascal yoar. Ducog
for payment on Septermbor 15, 2023 o any ether mutually agreed date between the

e aftur e thind anaversary but befone
at is sode discretioe, choose to wdeem e debentures with & premivin as shall be fised ab that time.

ard pomermvertible debentures (HC DS} Astendas Proporty Fusad (FOI) Pee Limited of Bs,
% por aniin. As per e e of the apeeement te Company sliall pay interest based on availabilivy of
1L tierins wore anwencled and interedt payable wpto Mard 2023 will T e Bow prayment sy

subiscauunt finlemst payiient shall ke on "pay whon abbe® basis

% an aption 1o roedessn thie debentures in partar full, at any lie atter the Guind anniversary Tl before
atits sole discretion, Uhocse to medeen e delentones with & prendunt a5 shallbe fund ab that e

BN pedeemable, unseeurod and nomoonvertible debentures (NCT5) of Bis, 100 wach amounling o Bs. 1K millicn o
teneal rale of 12% per antum issaed oo Jansary 21, 2020 &s por the bernts ol e agreemt e Conpany shatl pay

the finuncial yoar 2021-22 (nlecest pay mest erms were amended and intesest payable upio harch
Helidor. Al e subisequent interest payment sl be on “pay when

st b the Beard approval dated Apnil 27, 2003 e delentures wes lully tosteeined on bay 43,

! « (NCIs) of B 100 cach amounting bo s, 250 million o

Compeny shall pay interest busod an availability of

payrmwenl Pursuant 1o tie Board appeoval dated Apail 27, 2020 the debentures wer fully redecied an May 03,

s issuend unseered and compulsery sonslibhe debentures (CCD3) to Asvindas Property Fugnl [Trndia) P Lisibled of Bs.
w01, 2018, the second tranchie constiluting of 2350 CC05 on June 12, 2018, the Bind tranche constituling of 3

W4, e FifLh brams e constinting of 30 CCDs on Pebuary 22, 3009, the isth wandie constiluting of TN CCHs o

st o Ui above CODS wene amended arld inlenest payabls s duc on b imainad baske

Tl €C D Ahall b compailsorily convertible inlo equity shares af e Cempany en G
kel vl b ity shares % et e date of allobment of CCDs, These CCDs shall bot ibla inl aly shares on Wtk

drepositst T deposits (rom Dk tion Technadtggy Park Limited carey interest 0 14305 pa.and are repayable
aption. During e previoes year, Be company has amenidedd e ferms. As por O revised woms, U peingiphe

ather date m may be mutially agrecd. During the curnont year the mbercorporate deposl was Tully repald,

ampint dwe and payable m fall and shall be

i, 1o 4 CCDs of R, 3838 million, CCDs of Re. 1,393 million carry Lnferest 01 11% pea payahio annoally.
datis af allobmnent and 12.50% pa, thervaiten, payable annually. During the previous year inlesst payirenl usnms

asis o converion ratio whish cn be faie magket value as cn the dale of conversion aubeck o o misimun fair
y e e date af fsane and allotment of such CCD=

aftor 3 yeans (o Janary 6. 2017, with an early wpayment
repaid cn o before 61h Aprl 2023 or sudh

ek (Chennail Limited of Rs 2000 million on Drecember 23,

2014 a0 a private placement basis, in acosdance with Sectien 42 of thir Companios Acl, 1 e vrith Compuanies (Prospestus and Alkotnient of Securitics) Rules, 2014 and Conpanies (Shane Capital and

Dorentures) Rules, 2011

Thiese NCD's are Issined atpar and mdoemsble atter 1) pears at pat, The inwrston the NEDs i payald

)

The HCDs are secured as below:

e quarierly. The Dvberitures cany iterest @ 130% pa. from January 20, 2017 (12% vl Jansary 14,

Fiest anid enelusive diarga on e desslapment rghts of leasebald Land of thi Compuiny and construclion oo property land in favsue of del Trusles, a3 per debent bcription sl inter se
agrvimwnt
£, Other fimancial labililies
Mons current Current
Pacticulsis Asal Asat Asal Asat
Aanch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 3023 Mlarch 31, 2022
Dopenibs received from customens 58, 2513 52123 AL
Frteresst accrued but sol doe on beeveangs frapabie o related partios) - - 424040 EYUSET]
Retention meacy - agla ThA?
Puyable tovapital ceeditors - - a7 20008
Tatal 35521 21515 5,552.75 3,850.55
— —
Current bax lizhilities {net)
Particulars Xamt Arat
March 31, 2023 _Blarch 31, 2033
Cuerent Lan Babilities (et et of advane inoonwe Lax ol Rs 12231 T nar
millions {March 71, 2022 1 122,50 millica)]
317 3117
Provisions
Man- currant Current
Asat Asal Asat Asal
Titulis Mareli 31,2023 Morch 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Peavisian for emsplopes benefits - - - -
=« Gralusky 018 i L] g
- Campunsated absemes o LR (i1 s
Other pravisians
- Prawiswon for Las Lagations 1163 1253 - -
Tatal 12.9% 13.02 ol o.am
Particulars Anount
in provision for e litigati
Dalance as 2t Apel 1, 2020 2.69
Movement during D year 294
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1263
Movement during the yoar o
Halance as 2t March 31, 3023 1263

Fraviston fur Las Hitigations s careed fowands oo ol indimd e Tt patiomes. Provisson s based on the reliable estinuates of the

arpounl reguite d toscitie U obligation te sudhengeing,




4]

LA

Tncorme Tax
Asat Asat
Wiarch 31, 2023 Blaech 31, 2022

(3) Deferred tax labilities
Property, Plant and Equipment: Difference belween earrying amount of finend asscts my e inaneial statements o g5 por ncome-Ls purpsses A Mol
Trpste ot e penrses ollered for s on payment bt oxpeise pocopgised instabement of profitand s on the basis of amorisation JoAY a2
Topuact of bl bl res and of disvointing of les: depusils peoeived 69,01} (3347

mn narn
Deferred tax assels
Unabsoebod bisiness boss and depreciabon Jos
Intermesl alisallowre d uncer lncome tax law =
Deferred tax liabilities {met) 7071 213.70
Mutes:

1) Thee Com pany oiizels tax ansets wid Tabilivies it aaned arly 110 b legally enforecale ight Jov sl 0df Lol b ssels amd coerent b labifithes and (he deforred g assels and abiterged o luabalities

relate b i ome Lses foviod by Ui sanie Lax anthority.

(b) Current tax |
Thee wijor compunen s of oo Ly espensy for Ui years oded March 31, 003 and Mah 31, 2022 an

Particulars For the Year Fnded  Far the Year Ended
March 31,2023 Nlarch 31,2022
Slatemen| af profitand loss
11} Prafit or loss section
= Current income (o
Current ineemie b charge 199,53 22143
- Defemed tax:
Ralating 1o veig and wal ol Teniy v ditte renwes 57 1143
Inconte tax expense reparted in the statement of prafit or [oss 25651 23306
(i) O section
Pt Lems f [padinh on remeasaremen s of defimed bene it plans QLo0) i
Income tax charged 1o 001 [0.00) 0.8

af tax expense and the ing prredil plied by India’s domestic ks fale for Mharch 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

Particulars

For the Year Ended  Faor the Year Ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Accounling profit as per incosme X 72256 Tixmd
At lnelia’s statutory Bomse Lax rabe of 21 2% (March 31, 2022 29.12%) nial PN 14
Frugact aof Mot -deadiechille experses fr fan pinjess
Deprociation 3116 573
Oibwrs R ) ol
Al e effective income lax rate 35651 3w
Tncome L oxpense nepucled in e state et of proftand loss 15051 13304
Trade payables
Pastionlans Asat Asat
March 31,2025 Marchi 31,2022
Trade payables
 Total vutstarnding dues of micm enlerprises and small enerprises (Refer ot bolo 1293 1176
- Total cutstan daiy, does of ireditors other (han micrs et rplses and small enlerprises 120335 16512
Traule payables to related pasties other tam anicro enberprises and small enlorprses 4337 3279
Tetal HEBS 230,67
—
Thee abwree intormatiza repandiog Mico snd Small Enterpises has been determined o U extent sl parties ane ol wod oy b b of avallabile with the Company. Bater nole 3% for (he

amoant nalsLanding to mive and soall snderpraes as ol March 31, 2027 and us at March 31, 2032

Trade Payable Ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2013

T & ding for poriads from due date af payment
Pagticulars Total

| Mot Due Lassthan 1 Year 1+ Years 1-3Years Mdore than 3 Years
1) MEME - 129 E - - 1295
) Ol 17305 6297 - 922 145 195.70
i) Disputed dues - MSAE . = s x :
() 0is puted dues - Others b - = - - .
Tetal 12305 7592 - 5.2 045 205,65
As at March 31, 3022

| ‘Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Pavticulars Tatal

I HNot Due | Less Lvan 1 Year 1-21Years 2.3 Yaars I More than 3 ¥ears
i} MSME = 1276 =) g 1276
i) Ollcas 13 75 BM s 180%3 nrm
(i) Dispaited dues - MSME : £ 4 ) : -
(iv)Disparbed dues - Gifers - - - = - -
Tatat 44,05 .25 93 043 05 AT
Other cureent liabilili Moa- current Current
Pisticitais Asat Asat Asat Asal

Mlarch 31, 2023 Darch 31, 2023 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2022

Celorned lease weilals - - 6 981
Unearmwdd reveni e 53151 R T 3150 a8l
Statutary dues - - 4443 833
“Total 51.51 3057 4247 61.87




VITP Private Limited
CIN: U72200T G197 026801

Naotes o financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in millions of [ndian Rupees, unless olherwise stated)

21 Revenue from operations

Particulars For the Year Fnded  For the Year Ended
* March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Lease Rentals 1,839.44 1,705.87
Tevenue from contract with customers

Maintenance income 30123 299.91
Parking Incame 69.12 66,07
Other amenities income 21.35 36.41
Tatal Itevenue from Contract with Customers 2,231.14 2,108.26
Timing of revenue recognition

Goads transterred al a point in time - -
Services transterred aver time 192991 1,808.35
Contract balances

Contracl Assets

Trade receivables 1257 943
Contract Liabilities

Unearned Revenue 1a.54 9.8

MNotes:

a. Trade receivables are generally due within 1 month upon completion of service. In certain contracts, advances are required before the service is

provided.

b, Contract assets represents unbilled revenue, which is excess of revenue aver hilling The outstanding balances of these accounts increased

primarily on account of certain billing undertaken post year-end,

<. Contract liabilities represents income received in advance From customers, which is in the nature of deterred revenue.

22 Other income

Particulars Tor the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Gain on sale of investment property {(net) - 085
Provisions no longer required written back 87.03 48.65
Sale of scrap 13.13 21.98
Interest income
Bank depesils 5372 21.81
Debentures and Loans 1,054.31 1,090.66
Cthers az 7.59
Miscellaneous income 231 1001
Taotal 1,131 1,201.65
23 Emplayee benefils expense
ParticuTars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 6.77 7.53
Contribution to provident and ather funds Q.18 05
Gratuity expense (Refer note 28) 0.09 0.05
Tatal 7.4 7.74
24 Finance costs
Particulars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
March 31, 2023 Adarch 21, 2022
Interest expense on Debentures 1,594.08 1,540.68
Less - Interest capitalised {effective interest rate - 11 34 %) {23.51) -
Not Interest expense on Debentures 1,570.57 1,540.68
Interest expense on Intercorporate deposit 3281 10010
Interest expense on Deposits received from Customers 2875 29,00
Tatal 1,632.13 1,669.78




25 Depreciation expense

2
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o

=
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Paiticilass For the Year Ended  For Uhe Year Ended
March 31, 2023 Mlarch 31, 2022
Depreciation an property, plant and equipment am 741
Depreciation on investment properties 59343 47153
Total 01,44 478,94
Other expenses
Pasticiilars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
Mlarch 31, 2023 Mhlarch 31, 2022
Power and fuel 4,50 713
Fepairs and maintenance
Buildings 114,85 913
Plant and machinery 7081 101.61
Insurance 6,67 6.51
Property tax v 2329
Property management lee 4412 4144
Lease management fee 22006 2072
General management tee 4332 5315
Securily charges 4277 4326
Rates and taxes 0.25 in
Travelling and conveyance 1.92 0.83
Legal and professional fees (Refer note A below) 16.23 11.33
Marketing expenses 50.74 30.06
Advertising and publicity expenses 501 148
C5R expenses (Refer note B below) 1171 906
Expected credit loss allowance 0.20 0.l6
Loss on discard,/sale of property, plant and equipment and investment property 007 -
Miscellaneous expenses 913 6.34
Tatal 481.63 45181
Legal and praf | charges include the following paidy payable Lo auditors (excluding goods and service lax)
Particulars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
Barch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
As auditor
Audit fees 135 051
Limited review Q.40 0.80
Group Reporting Fee 0.50 -
Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 0.07 -
Total 232 132
Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR)
Particulats For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
March 31, 2023 Narch 31, 2022
Gross amount required ta be spent by the group during the year 11.71 906
Amount spent during the year ending on 315t March, 2023: In Cash Yel Lo be paid in Total
cash
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - = -
i) On purposes ather than (i) above 11.71 11.71
Amaunt spent during the year ending en 31st March, 2022 Tu Cash Yet to he paid in Total
cash
il Canstruction/ acquisition of any asset = 5 =
it} On purposes other than {i) above 9.0 - 906

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Details related to be spent / unspent obligatians:
i) Amount paid lo beneficiaries . 2
i) Contribulion o implementing agency
Amount spent 11.71 .06

Amount unspent in relation te:
- Ongoing Project

Mote:

a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amaunts that are redquire

the Companies Act 2013 {‘the Act’), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act,

d to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIEof

) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a special account in compliance of provision

of sub section {6) of section 135 of the Act.




VITP Private I
CIN: U72200TG1 9497 P TC026801

mntes 1o financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

LA amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

27 Earnings per shace (EPS)

Fasic EPS amaunts arc caloulated by dividing e protit for the year attributable to equity hold
ulstanding during the yrae and oquity share

s by the weiphted average number of squily shares
5 il will e isssmed upan (e comve rsion of mandatuly

Dituted EFS ainouints are caloalated by dividing the profit attrbutable to equity holders by e weighted averspe number of vquily shares oulst
duting e year plas the weighted sverage sumber of Equily shares hat wonlil b issued on vonversion ol all Bhe dilutive potential equity shares
cquily shares.

The following reflects the nconne sl shan: dabs wsed in the basic and diluled EPS computalions:
A al Agat

Aareh 31, 2023 AMareh 31, 2022
Profit atiributable W equity holders lor basic camings 166,03 164052
Woighted average sumber of equity shares of s, 10 each autstanding during Hhee e i HILAREEL 10,5849, 821
Add: Equity shanes to be fssued apon e conversion ol Compulscrily C Al Drok 143,200 1521112
Weighted average number of equity shares of Bs. 10 each oulstanding during the period
wsedd in caloulating basic and diluted EFS 2,121 06k 12110436
Farning per share (EP'S)
Basic (Rs.) k) 874
Diluted {Hs) W TR

28 Gratuily and other post-employment benelil plans

The Company has 4 delined benelil geatuily plan. Every employee wihi las compleled five years o mere of service gels 4 pratully on departure at 15
s salary Tast draven salary) for cachi completed year of service subject to a maxinum of Rs. 2 miillion, The scheme is funded with LIC, the contributions
are paid Lo Ascemlas Services (adia) Private Limited, who il o LIC. The following Lalles ize the P ts ol net henelit expense
revegnized in the staterent of profit e Bosss anel e funded status and anounts recognized in he balanee sheet lor gratuily Bt 1L Ansnd included
are rounded off to twe decmals.

Particulars Asal As at
Mlarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Statement of profit and loss
Met emplayee benufit expense (recognized in emplayer benetils expensy)

Currenk service cosk 047 ua

Tz pest cost e benetit oblip 0.01 .01

Expeeted retumt an plan assels - -

Mol actuarial Toss) [gain) recognized -

Mot benelil expense 0.09 .06

Halance sleet

Defined henefit abligation 023 .20

Fair value of plan assels = =

Plan {asset] Hability 038 0.20

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation

Opening, defined benefit alilipation 021 .10

Tnterest cost 001 10

Current servive cosl 007 (iR

Bueawfils paid = :

Actuarial (gain Joss o obligation {00 [

Closing defined benefit abligation 029 0.21

Changes in the fair value of plan asseis

Opening, fir value of plan assels

Exjentid relurm

Conlrilutions by empleyer - -

Acquisition,/ Business Combination/ Divestiture -

Actuarial gaing (loss) - -

Closing fair value of plan assels "

Actual return on plan assels

Fxpected relum an plan assets =

Actuarial paing {loss) on plan assels -

Actual return on plan assets - -

The principal iens used in d ining gratuity obligati

Discount rate 7.57% H38"%

Sulary Increase Rale 10.00% 10.00%

Dlortality Rate TALM 2012-14 FALM 201214
ultimale ultimale

Withudrawal Rabe 1200 (LA RS

HRetirement Ape ol pears il pears




29 Commitmenta and contingencles

a, Leases

(perating lease commitments = Company as lessor

The Operating leases on ronting [nvestment Properly entered inti by the Company are usually for a peciod bebween 3 years to 15 years, which inclucde
bustlh casscellable and non-cangellalile leases, The lessee fas (he option b either renew the lease for & (uelher period s may be decided upon by mutual
consent or vacate U premises. Ducag e tenone of the lease, the Operation and Blaintenioe ¢harges are o be borme by the lussec for all the services
aned Tacilities provided by the Company.

Refer note 21 for lease income recagnised in Slatement of peofit and loss

Frature minimun renlals receivalbe undur non-cancellable operating leases ane as Followes:

Agal Asat
March 31, 2023 reh 31, 3022
[l e year #2131 SRU.A5
Adter cne yoar buk nob more than five years Al180 616,14
Mlare than five years = -
T'otal 166314 1,196.50

b. Cammilments
i) The estimated amount of conteacts, net of advances remain
2002 Rs. 2,128.71 million).

1l For con

to be exeented on capital avconnt and pal provided is Rs. LMZ63 million {dlanch 31,

sments relating o debentines issued by the Company, refer note 15.

¢, Impact af pending Litigations

Asat As at
Mlarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Sales tax mallers uader dispute (Refer note i) 1512 (e b
Sorvice tax matters under dispute (Reler nole i) 23182 28482
Inwume-tax matlers snder dispute (Refer note iii) S0 38000

The anusants disclosed abeowe seprosenl omr Test estinu e
Company or the claimant as the case may be.

the uncerlainties are dependent on the auteome of the legal provesses nvitialeedd by Une

Sales lax matters under dispule
The Company has received various demand ordors fron Sales Tiix authaeities ameunling b Rs. 6091 million for the periods 200200 W W05, 201112

aind 01218 demanding VAT an fit out rentals collected By the Company fram ils customees. The same Bas boon disclosed as contingent lability {net of
provision).

{ii} Service tax niattess under dispule

The Company has received variaus demaned crders liom Service Tax authorities amounting to Rs. 28774 million for porieds June 2007 to March 2001,
April 2011 1o September 2012, April 2010 to September 2015 imposing service b on diesel reimbursement durges Lo by Ui Company. During the
current year the Company has reeeived o faverable nrdos, the deprtiment las an aplion o appedd b higher authorities. Th
comtingent lability (net of provision).

e las been disclosed a5

ikl Ineome-tax matters under dispule

Tncome Tax Assessrent AY 2007-08 : The Company has reveived an Ovder Giving Effect o the order of te Hon'ble ITAT on Oclober 23, 2021 from he
Treputy i ol lnconme-tax (A de g, Rs. 1122 million Gincluding interest wmlber Section TUB & 234C of the Acamounting o Bs. 1448
o e B, 031 million respectively) for the subject AY, after consitlering regular assessment lax of [, 9.56 million as rentitted by the Company. AD
made the following additions, disallowances to the assessed Income of lhe Company:
- Dhisall oo of deprectation Ling b R 474 million with respect to additions made to fised asscts Juring e yoar amounting Lo

B 4790 million

Addition under section 68 of the At amornting to Bs, 90,00 million being laan taken fram Information Technology Park of Bangalare {ITPR)
~ Inlerest with respect to the abeve loan smouating to s, 0.4 million

The Campany has lled an appeal o CITIA] challengiog, the s

Inconte Tax Assessient AY 2011-12 and AY 201213 : The Company has received income Lix assessment wrders foe AY 2011-12, AY 2002-13, The AO has
Brought to bax e woess of Fair muarkel value {FMVY ol shares over and abeve e conside ration paid o Ascendas Froperly Fund (FDN) Phe Limited on
Buy-back of hares a5 Income fron other soures’ in e hands of the Cotupany. The Company buas filed appeal belore CIT(A).

Tncome Tax Assessoient AY 2013-14 and AY 2004-15 : The Company has reveived income tax assessment oeders for AY 201314 and AY 2014-15, The AQ
Fras Beaupht b G the excess of Fair market value (FMY7) ol shares over and abave (he consideration paid to Ascendas Property Fuid (FDI) Ple Linnited
an Buy-hack of sharnes as “Tncompe from other sounes’ in the Tands ol the Company. The CITUA) bas passed the arders for bath e assessment year dated
Cutober 26, 207, upholding Me addition wade by the AQ wader Sectinn Se()viia) of the Aot in respect of shares bought back by the Company to the
extent of difierence belween the aggregate faie market value of the shares Lought amil comsideration paid on buyback, The Company filed appeal with
Tncome Tax Appellate Tribunal agains| the CIT{AY order in [amary 2118, During, e year the Company has neveived o Grvenralde arder irons e TTAT,
the departiment lias appealod ta the higher autharilics.

Income Tax Assessment AY 2015-16 and AY 2016-17 : Incomwe Tux Assessment Oeder AY 201516 andd AY 200617 - Parsuant b rectification petition
muade by he Company for AY 2011-12 and AY 201213, whercin the available MAT credits whinh were carlier ulilized for AY AT, AY 200415, AY
1516 amd AY 2016-17 now have bewn adjusted against AY 2011-12 and AY' 201213, VITP has filed o combingd Tetter for rectifivation of mistakes
apparent on recond o respect of the above-mentioned rectification order. Avcordingly, post rectification the demqind nolice was received by the Compay
in respeet of shorl payment of Tax.

Incame Tax Asseasment AY 201718 : The Company had received transler prich
wrdier dated April 30, 2020 enhancing Ui taxable ncome by Bs. 22,68 millicn primarily on account of leasler pricing adjustment unader sevtion 92CA ol
e Trvcomie Tax Act, 1961, will respect Lo interest expense on Non- setible Debentures (MODs) fssuvil 1o Ascemdis Properly Fund (FOT) Ple Limited.
The Company has received the final wssessment ardes dated June 28,201 g Uhe adjustient and d ding the Lax anountof Bs, 6,80
The Company has filed an appeal before CITA).

gorder for AY 201718 dated January 25, 2021 and drafl axsessment

Ircome Tax Assessment AY 2007-18 3 The Company had seceived transher pricing erder for AY 20 17-18 dted January 29, 2027 and draft assessment
ander dated Seplember 3, 2021 cnbancing the tasable incomwe by Rs. 430 million y on akcount of transfor peicing adjustment wider section 92204
of the Income Tax Act, 1981, witl respect o inleresl expense an Nan-Convertible Dubentures (NEDs) issned 1o Ascendas Properly Fud {FDI) Ple
Limited. The Company has received the final wssessiment aeder dated November 249, 2021 confirming the adjustment. The Company has filed an appeal
betore CTTEA).

Income Tax Assessuient Order for AY 201819 : The Compay has received W3} anler dated Apnl 18, 2027 awccepling B wolumed inceme of YITT. On
pemusal of the ovder, §1 s observed il e AQ has short, granted TOS ereddil 1o the estent of Re 4991 million a5 compared t credit dalied in (TR
Eugther, basis updated Form 2645, YITP is eligible o o additional TDS credit of R=, 1,25 million which was nol daimed in the ITR. The Company has
tilewd Appeal Tetore CITEAL

Trcomie Tax Assessment Order for AY 200809, AY 201011 and AY 2018-19+7
1k

T Comprany hadl filed a ceclification petition fer short graut ol TS wl It
i for AY 2008 09, Rs, 0.24 milliun for AY 200011 and Rs. 53119 million for AY 201319,




0 Segment information

The Company is principally engaged in e business of developing, eperaling and mainkaining industeial and T/ITES parks on SEZ and nen-SEZ lauds
and fncidental and associsted activities, As such, Uie Company operates in 4 single business and peographic segrient and henee disclosing informatinn as
e the requinements of Ind AS 104 *Operaling segments® s nol required, Fusther, no singhe major costomer represents sales of more tian 10%.

The Company is domiciled i Tndin and all the non-currenl assets of the Company are located in Tndia, The Company's revenue from operations from
cxternal customers relate o beasing in the natare of lease rental incame, operations and
Ui Statement of protik and less nead with note 21

e incomie and other amenities income a5 disclosed in

Sigmificant ting i i and i

The preparation of T staterments in confvrity with e recoguition and meastrement priviples ol bk A5 yequines management Lo make
el L enlimales an plivas that affect the reparted balanees of | s, wssels and Talilities and e accompanying disdosees,
anal the disclasure of contingent lahilities, Uncertainly aboul lhese assomprlions and estimates could resalt

to the canrying ammant of assets or labilities affected i fulure preriods,

sulcaimes thal require @ material sdjustuent

The key assumplions concerning te fubare and atlher key soures of estimation uncertaingty ab e reporting date, that have o significant sk af causing 4
material adjustient o the carrying smonnts of assets and liabilities within (he sest fnamanl year, are described bedow. The Company based its

£ jons and vstimales on . U ailabile wiven (e financial statemunts were prepared. Existing circomstanees and assumyplions albonl fubure
duvelopments, owever, may change due o market changes or vireumslaneces arising at are beyond the control of the Company. Suchy changes are
reflected in e assumplions when ey ocour,

a) Tax lligations

The Company is subject to periedic assessiments by Lx authorities on vartous direct and indirect tax matlees arising during the woarna | course of business.
Thuse arvas include disputes in respect of income Lx, service lacand walue-adided tax, Tudgement is reguived b assessing the b dsses and the potential
exposures to delermine whether, and how much, to provide in respect of tax dispules. At Manh 31, 2025, the Company las AliseJosed can
arising (com Lo disputes as setout in note 29 o U Tnd A5 rancial statementa.

et Linbililics

b} Avcounting for leases
In thie process of applying the accounting palivics, sanagement haa nuade judg L pelativg 1o d ination of lease classification which
sigmificant effect on he onoeis recognised in the financial stalements.

The Company bas enbered inla commercial propesly leases on ils fuwestaient properdies. The Company has determined, bused on an evaluation of the
Lerms and conditions of the arrsgements such as e lease term net constituting a s sstantial portion of the economic life of the commuenial propery,
that it relains all the siguificant riska and rewards of ownesship of these propertics and s accaunts for the coulracts as aperal

as Hiw mast

p leases.

¢ Deferred lax assels
Defermed lax assel, o sing of Minimum Alternative Tax (“MAT”) creadit is recognised 1o the extent thal it s probable U
nermmal nceme Lix during the spevified perdod, e, the perod for which MAT credit is allowed 1o he carried forvard
available apainst whicl e MAT credit can be wtilised, Significant mana geme il
resugiised, based upon e likely iming ad Teved of fulure Lixable profils Lope

al the Company will pay
ndh sufficient Laxable prafit will be
dpement is required todelermine e amount of MAT crodit that can ba
ewilh future tas planning strategies.

d) Useful lives of Investment Property and Propesty, Plant and Equipment - Refer nole 2.2(c)

e} The Company has considered the possille elfects thal may result from the pandemic relating by COVIDAY an Lie fulure business operativas of the
Company aud ils consequential elfecs on the wanrying its of inveslmenl propesty, inves in debent Including interest aceroed, trade
recoivables, unbilled revenie and recoversble expenses, In developing the assumptions relating Lo the possible future sncertainties in e global and
Iadian ceonamic conditions beeause of this pandemic, e Company, as at the date af appreval of tese linaucial stalements bas used internal and external
aources of information. The Company ased on current estimates expects e carrying ameunt of these asso1s as reflected in e balance sheel os at March
31, 2023 will ke revovered, The company's ability To continue as.a poing vencem is Tased on establishing profilable operations and abtaining contlouing
financtal support froo ils investars. The mpact of COVID-19 on the Company’s finaneial statements may difter from that estimaled as at the date of
apprival of these financial statements.

f) Provisions and 5 i

A provision s recognised when e Company has o present ablipation as 4 result of past event and il is probable that an outflow of resources will be
A te seltle the abligation, in respect of whidh lhe reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excuding 1 benefits amd compensaled
absences) are nol discounted Lo ils presenl value and are deteriitied based on bost estimate required to setthe the obiligation a1 L Laleoce sheel date,
These ane reviewed at sach Balance sheel dale adjusted 10 reflect the current best estimates, Conlingent Rabilities ane nol recognisel in
statements. A conlingent assel is nelther rocopniscd nor disclased in te fnancial stalements,

linanwial

Financial risk management objeclives and policies

The Company’s princpal Sl labililies comprise of bormwings, security deposils, tade and other payables. The main purpose of these lwandial
ialsilities i o finance and support the entity's operating and investi ities. The Company's principal 1 assels include boans given in the form
of debentures, trade and other neeivalbles, cosh and cash equivalents, and other bank balanees that derive directly from ils operiting and investing
aclivilies.

The Commpany is cxposed o credit risk and Hguidity risk. The Compainy's senior T il o s e I L of these risks, The Company's
sonfor manageiient is suppored Ty a finandal risk committee hat advises on financial risks and the approgriute financial sk governance frameveork foe
the Company. The financial risk conmitter provides assuranee 1o the Comye, geemenl thal the Company's financial risk activities are

oy apy iabe policies amd p Jureess and it Gisneial cisks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the entily’s polivies
and risk abjectives. The Baard of Directors reviews and agrees policics for sanaging eac vl these risks, which are swmnerised belove

"5 senlor m

i. Credit sisk
Credit risk i the risk Uil counterparty will not mect (15 obligations under a financial msteament or cusiomer contrach, leading 1o a financial loss The
Company is esposed Lo aedil risk from ils ope  activities (primarily trade recetvables) and dnvesting activities (ahal teem bank deposits and
Toans/ debentures). Credit appraisl is perfommed Ty e mana geaent before Tease agroemenls are cutered nlo with customers and [oans
form of debentures. The risk in respeel of customers is miligated due W customers pludng spaificant amount af security deposits for Iease and fit-oul
renbalsand in respeet of del Ly obitaining n y eollateral sec

Credil risk from balances witl banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in acconlance with the Comp
prlicy. Tnvestments of surplus funds are made only with approved conmterparties and witlin ceedit limils assigned lo each cownterparty. Counterpa
credit limits are roviewed by the Company’s Board of Directers an an annual basis, and may be updated throaghout e year suliject 1o approval of the
Company’s Finance Commities. The limils ane sel bo mininsise the comcentration of risks amd twrofore miligate Hnancial Toss through o counterparty’s
putential failuce Lo make payments. The Company’s maximum exposuee to redit sk for the components af e statement of financial pasition at March
31, 2023 and March 31, 2002 are Wi carrying amounts s illusinded i ooke 6A, 6B, 6C, 7,10 and 12,

Al The Ialanee sheet date, there was no signiticant concenteation of credit sk, The masinu exposure lo crualit risk i represented by e carcying value
of vach linaneial assel in e Talanee sheet.

==
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The ageing analysis of the trade receivables (gross of provisions} has been considered framt the date invoice falls due and nol impaired is as falloves:

Asal Aaar
Mlarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Upto six months 6.83 1794
Moo than six manths 18.79 225
Taotal 25.64 20.24
The carrying amount of trade receivables determined to he impaired i a3 Follows :
Agat As ab
March31,2003  March31,2022
Ciross amount 135 1.30
Leess: Prowision tor doubiiul debis (1.35) (130
Tatal =) =
i, Liguidity Risk

The Company's objective is L maintain a balance belween confing
The falble below summarises the matarily profile of e Company's |
payments)

el leaibility through the wse of bank deposits and loans,
ities Tised on contraclual undiscounted payments Gnelading mkenest

Within1 year 1lo5 years After 3 years Total

As ab March 31, 2023

Borrowings" 5000 - FEATRYS 818737
Qtler tinaneial liabilities = 5,552.73 158.22 - 5,810.57
Trade payables 208.63 = 2 208.65
Talal 611140 358.22 7,837.37 14,306.99
As al March 31, 2022

Borowings - 700400 791948 8,619.48
Other (inatciel abililies ** 1n326d 276 - 392894
Trade payables 230.67 - - 230.67
Taotal 3,663.31 97631 7.919.48 12.779.09

“exluides Compulsority Converlible Debenatures of Rs, 3,338 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 3,538 million) refer Mote 13(10) for details
“¥alue of scourity deposits las been considered on undiscounted basis fe, Rs. 936.93 (March 3, 2002 Bs. 75785 ) and value of (nterest acered of Rs.
236015 (March 31, 2022: Rs. 202.05) duw (o elfective inlerest rale mehod has not heen comsideeed since ne cash outilow s expected.

Related party disclosures

Malure of relationship Mame of the related parly

Ultinrale holding company CapitaLand India Trust (Formerly knoswn as Ascendas India
Trust), Simgapoee

Halding, company Ascendas Property Fumnd (Tudia) Ple Limited

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Enlerprise aver which investor exercises control Capitaland Hope Foundation (India) (formerly known as
Ascendas Gives Foundation)

Entorprise over wihich investor exercises control Ascondas Services (India) Private Limited

Frllow subsidiary Ascendas Properly Fund (FDL Ple Limited

Fellenw sulsidiary Tnformation Technology Park Limited

Fullowe subsidiary Ascendas 1T Park (Clheanad) Limived

Fellow subsidiary Cyher Pear! Information Teclnology Park Private Bimited

Fellow subsidiary Hydvrabad lnfratech Private Linuted

Fellow subsidiony Avance Allas Infratech Privale Limited

Follow subsidiary Dheevan Real Venhares Private Limitwd

Fellow subsidiary Avance T ahubs Privale L ol

Fellow subsidiary LOMA Co-Developers 1 Privie Limited

Fellow subsidiary Chengalpallu Logistics Parks Private Ltd

Key Managemint Personnel Katilingam Koppu, Company secrelary




(i) Details of related parly lransactions ducing the year ended Alarch 31, 202% and March 31, 2022

Party

For the Year Ended

Far the Year Ended

S{ chakreren r,:‘
) ACOOUNTANTS i~
L3
&, )
QU

S K

DA o
L B
3

-

~lg
e\

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Katilingam Koppu

[ lion Lo Koy manip Lpersonned 677 731
Ascendas Services (India) Private Limited

Lease Rental ncane 543 L.

Relmbursement of expenses L6

Froperty Management, General Management, Lease Management Expenses 13330 15904

Reimbursenent of expenses 226
CapitaLand Hope Foundation (India) (fosmerly knewn as Ascendas Gives Foundation)

Demation Fald 1nn unhs
Ascendas Preperty Fund (FE) Pte Limited

Tl rest expeise o debentunes 83215 H03.79

Bosrowings received 23000 5
Ascendas Property Fund {India) Ple Limited

Interest exprense on debestunes 13802 43904
Tnformation Technelogy Park Limiled

Interest expense oo inler corporate deposils 3 Lek11m
Ascendas IT Park {Chennai] Limited

Interest expense on debentures 30390 T
Cyber Pearl Information Technalogy Park Pet Ltd

Feimbursement of expeases 0.26 041
Hyderabad Tnfratech Private Limited

Tetmbursement of expenses om 0oz
Avance-Atlas Infratech Private Limited

Reimbursement of expenses an nn
Deccan Real Venlures Urivate Limited

Reimbursemenl ol expenses (LEI a0z
Avance Technolwb Private Limited

Interesl income oo investments B9 G340

Reimbursenwent ol xpenses ool an2
LOMA Co-Developers 1 Private Limited

[nterest income on investienls 2.3 s
Chengalpatiu Logistics Parks Pyt Lid

[nterest Tncomne o inve st nls L

i} Oubstanding halances as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

Recelvables
Reimbursement of Expenses
Cylr Peearl Information Technelogy Park Put Lid 008
Avance-Atlas [nfratech Private Limited w02
Hyderabad Infritech Private Limited an
Devean Real Ventures Private Limited 002
Lourrs aerd Tnoestimnents
Avance Technohub Private Limited 49014
LOMA Co-Developers 1 Private Limited fa.o
Pieterest acerued on Losus and lavestinicnts
Avanve Technohub Private Limiled (RS
LOMA Co-Developers 1 Private Limited - 258,29
Payables
Trade Miynbles
Capitaland Singapore (DP&C) Ple. L 0.31) LR
Ascendas Services Ple Ltd (1.2 [E)
Ascomlas Services (India) Private Limited H3.49) (AL17)
Barranrings
Ascenilas Praperty Fumd (FD1y Pre Li (i, 18300 (3,933.00)
Asvenilas Property Fund (India) Pte Lamited [EX LR 4] {L838.00)
Adcendas Property Fund Trustee Fle Lid {01y 0.0
Intormation Technalogy Park Limited - (700.00)
Ascondas [T Pack [Chennai) Limited (2, 04.37) (1,986 48)
uterest wecrued but uol due on Borrotengs
Ascundas Property Fund (FDT) Pre Limited (2007,1H) (L318.47)
Ascordas Property Fumd (India) Ple Limnited (1.63M.38) {L215.17)




WITE Private Limited

[ CIN: U722001 G19977 TC026801

Notes to linancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Al amounts are in millians of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

34 Fairvalue measurements

The carrying value of financial instruments by categones is as follows:

| As at March 31, 2023 "As at March 31, 2022

|I Particulars At Cost Fair value At Amortised Al Cost Fair value Al :\mo.rﬁﬂd
through Cost through Cost
I prafit or loss profit or loss
Financial assets
lnvestments - - 278734 - - 4,488.02
Trade receivablos - & 24.29 & = 18.94
Cash and cash equivalents - = 1,605.65 ® = 492.36
Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivalents - E = = £ -
Laans - 2 3,022.00 - - 252200
‘ Other financials assets - . 246757 5 - 209118
| Talal - - 9,907.35 - - 10,012.49
i Financial labilities
| Torrowings - - 12,025.37 - - 1245748
Trade payables - - 208 A5 . - 230,67
Other financial akbilities = - 591097 - - 4,075.73
Taotal - - 18,1445 - - 16,763.88

35 Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

H As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

| Carrying Eair value Carrying Fair value
‘ amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
i Financial assets
Measured 2l cost/ amotised cos)
Investments 278784 - - 2,787.84 4488.02 - - 448802
Trade receivables 2419 - - 224 18.94 - - 1894
Cash and cash squivalents 1,605.65 - - 1,605.60 49236 - - 49236
Hank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents - . = . : i -
Loans 3,022.00 - - 3,022.00 292300 s - 2,922.00
Oither financials assets 2467.57 - - 2,467.57 2,091.18 = - 2,001.18
,; Tatal 9.907.35 - - 9.507.35 10,012.49 - - 10,012.49
Assets For which fair value are disclosed
Investment properties 11,638.19 - - 35,962.00 6,958.54 - E 32,457.00
Total 11,638.19 - - 35,962.00 6,958.54 = - 32.457.00
s e
Financial liabilities
Measured af arortised cosd
Borrowings 12,025.37 2 - 12,025.37 12,457.48 - - 1245745
Trade payables 208.65 5 - 208.65 230,67 - - 2067
Other financial ligbilites 5,910.97 - - 5,910.97 407573 - = 407573
Total 18, 144.99 - - 13,144.99 16,763.89 3 - 16, 763,85
|
.I
Notes:

Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.
| Level 2 inputs are inputs other than queted prices included within lovel 1 that are observable far the asset or labdlity, either directly or indirsctly.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

There have been na transfers between the levels during the period
The carrying amounis of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances olher than cash and cash equivalents, trade payables and ather current financial liabilities are
considered to be the same as their fzir values, due to their short-term nature,

| The fair values for investments, other non-carrent financial assets and other non-current financial liahilities, were calculatad based on cash flows discounted using a current
|| lending rate.

They are classified as level 3 fale values in Hie fair value hizrarchy due lo the inclusion of unobservable inputs inclading counterparty credit risk.
The fair values of non-current horrawings are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate.

| They ate classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, including awn credit risk,

Far fair valuat hodalegy of invest property, refer note 4.




VITP Privaie Limited
CIN: U722001G1997F TCO26501
Notes ta financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

(Al amounts are in nullions of Indian Rupecs, unless othwnwise slated)

36 Capital management

For the purpese of the Company’s capital management, capila

The primary objective of the Company’s capital manag L i b nyacimiisie the sk

walue,

The entity imansges its vapital structune anid ks adjustnents in light of changes 0 SO ¢
adjust e capital structurs, the entity may adjust Ue dividend
a gearing ralin, which i net debt divided by Lotal capital plus net debt. The
bearing loans and Borrowings, trade and ather payables, [ess cash and cash equivalents and hank Tt

aperations.

payment to shareholde

nlum vapi

and He regui

[ includes issued equity capilal and reserves and surplus attritutable to the equity Lolders of he Company.
I

s of the financial covenants. To maintain or
1! 1o sharcholders or ssue new shares. The enlily monitors capital using
entily's policy is lo keep the gearing ratio minimal. The cnbily ine ludes within net debl, interest
ances other tian cash and cash oquivalents, excluding disvontinued

Asal As al
March 31, 2023 Adarch 31, 2022
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 12,0025.37 1243744
Trade pavables HIEAS 23067
Othier payables 591047 RN rENEY
Less: Cash and cash equivalents {L605.65) (492.36)
et Debts A 16,530. 3 16,271.52
Equity B 167136 3,208.31
Total C=A+H 21,13.70 20,479.83
GGearing, ratio AJC T 7%

I order to achieve Uhis overall objective, the entity’s capilal management, amangst ather things, aims to ensure that il mects financial covenants alta bl Lo e interest-

[
in the current periad.

g loans and barrowings that define capital slructure requirements. There have

Mo changes were made in the objectives, policies of provesses for manaping capital during the yrars ended Manch 31, 2003 and March 31, 2022,

37 Other Statutory Information

{1} The Company da not have any Benami praperly, where any procecding has been initiated ar pending agains:

Peen no breaches i the financial covenants of any interes-bearing loans and borrowing

& the Group for holding any Beaami property.

{ii) The Cempany do nol hive any transaclions with companics slouck off.
(i) The Campany do ol lave any charges or satisfaction which is yet Lo be repistered with ROC beyond the statutory preriod.
{iv} The Company have not traded or invested in Cryplo carrency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

%) Mo funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from porrowed funds or share premium o any ather sounces or kind of funds] by the Company 1 ur in any
other persons of entities, induding foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with Uhe understanding, whether revorded in writing oF otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
wheller, directly or indirectly lend or invest in ollier persons or entities identificd in any manner whatsoever by o on behalf of the Company (*Ultimate Benefiviaries”) or

provide any guarantes, security or the like on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

() Mo funds have Boen neveived by the Company from any persons oo entities, including foreipn o
writing ar othenwise, that the Company shall, whether, ditectly or indrrcelly,
of the Funding Party {~Ultimate Benefii farios”) or provide any puarantee, security o i like on behall of the Ulimate Beneficiaries:

38 Ratio Analysis and its elements

lerud or invest in other persons or entilies identified in

niitics (Funding Parties®), wilh e understanding, whether recorded n
any manner whatsoever by or on behall

Ratin N mﬁlu.r Denominator March 31, 2023 darch 31, 2022 Yachange Temarks
Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 114 0.86 3% Variance due 1o
redemption of
Investments and
increased cash
balance.
Debit equity ratio Total debt (Mote 2 Total equity (equity 348 3.69 -6%
below) share capital + other
oquity)
Debt Service Coverage ratio Profit before finance  Finance cost + 119 142 -16%
cost, tax expense and - Current Borrowings
depreciation
Return on equity ratio Met Profits after taves Shareholder's 044 0.44 -1%
(Including OCT) Equity
Trade Receivables Turnover ratio Revenue from Average trade 10322 113.95 4%
operations Receivables
Trade Payables Turnover ratio  Other expenses Average Trade 139 216 103% Variance due to
Mayables increase in payables
ol marketing tee and
property lax.
Net Capital Turnover ratio Revenue from Working capital = 247 -3.55 -170% Vardance due to
operations Current assets — positive working
Currenl liabilities capital and increase
in revenue fram
aperalions,
et Profit ratio Net Profit Revenue from n21 0.22 5%
aperations
Return on Capital Employed Prafit before finance  Capital Employed = 014 014 1%
costand lax expense  Tangible Net Worth
+ Total Debt +

Deterred Tax

Notes:

1. The Company has not disclosed invenlory lumnover ralio sinee

2. Total Debt = (Non current harrowings + current borrowings + interest accrued on horrowings)

the Company's business does nol require maintenance of inventories.
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VITP Private Limited

Motes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts are in millions of [ndian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

39 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED Ad, 2006

Particulars

As at Asal
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

The privcipal aosnd and the interest dug fhereon remaining 1paid fo amy supplice as at the emd af eaelt dcconmting year

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises
Interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year} but without adding the interest sperified under the MSMED Act
2006,

The amotnt of interest averned and remaining wnpaid of the e of ench accownling year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when
the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a

deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006,

40 The finaneial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022, were audited by S.R. Batliboi & Assaciates LLF, Chartered Accountants, the predecessor auditors.

41 The Companies (Accounts) Amendments Rules 2022 mandate maintenance of hackup of company’s books of accounts and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode on
servers physically localed in India on a daily basis with effect from August 05, 2022. The management evaluated several options during the financial year 2022-23 considering other
important aspects such as mitigation of data and cyber security risks. The management has now initiated actions and implemeniation is expected to be completed in due course of time,
The management is of the view that this does not have any impact on its Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2013,

42 The figures of the previous year have been reclassified regrouped for better presentation in the financial statements and ta confirm to current years classification/ disclosures,

For and on behalfl of the Baard of Directors of

Private Limile

Nagabhushanam GauritShankar
Director

DIN - DB221638

Place; Smgapore

Date: May 29, 2023

Sanjeev Dasgupta
Director

DI 00090701
Mace: Singapore
Dale: May 29, 2023

3 D

Kotilingam Koppu /’

Company Secretary
[A-17903)

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 19, 2023
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

CIN - U72200TG1997PTC026801
Name of the Company : VITP Private Limited
Registered Office : Capella Block, 5" Floor, Plot No. 17, Software Units

Layout, Madhapur, Hyderabad — 500081.

Members attending the Meeting in person or by proxy are requested to complete the
Attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting room.

Folio No. ‘

No. of Shares i

Name and Address of the Shareholder

| hereby record my presence at the 26" Annual General Meeting of the company to be held
on Friday, 22 September 2023 at 3:00 P.M IST at the registered office of Company at Capella
Block, 5" Floor, Plot No. 17, Software Units Layout, Madhapur, Hyderabad — 500081.

Signature of Shareholder/ Proxy
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HYDERABAD, HITEC CITY
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PROXY FORM
CIN . U72200TG1997PTC026801
Name of the Company . VITP Private Limited
Registered Office : Capella Block, 5" Floor, Plot No. 17, Software Units

Layout, Madhapur, Hyderabad — 500081.

Name of the Member(s)
Registered Address
Email-id

Folio No.

| / We, being the member(s) of shares/debentures of the above-mentioned
company, hereby appoint:

1. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature: , or failing him/her

2. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature: , or failing him/her

3. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me [ us and on my / our behalf for or against
any resolution at the 26" Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, 22
September 2023 at 03:00 P.M IST at the registered office of Company at Capella Block, 5"
Floor, Plot No. 17, Software Units Layout, Madhapur, Hyderabad — 500081.

Ordinary Business:

ltem No. 1 — Adoption of Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31
March2023 the Auditors’ Report and Directors Report.

Signed this___day of , 2023

; Affix
Signature of Shareholder

REEHIE
Stamp

Signature of Proxy Holder(s)
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